Aberdeen Standard Investments

Partnership Accounts

SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

S8EPWUUB SCT 25/09/2019 #293 COMPANIES HOUSE

Registration number: SC473807

Company Information

Directors

I Harris

S Hay

P McKellar

R Pim

Company secretary

H S Kidd

Registered office

1 George Street Edinburgh

EH2 2LL

Independent Auditor KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Saltire Court 20 Castle Terrace Edinburgh United Kingdom EH1 2EG

Directors' Report

for the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors

The names of the current Directors of the Company are shown on page 1.

The Company's ultimate parent company, Standard Life Aberdeen plc, maintains Directors' and Officers' liability insurance on behalf of its Directors and Officers.

Company Secretary

Company Secretaries of the Company during the period were as follows:

H S Kidd (appointed as Company secretary 22 October 2018)

D R Thomson (resigned as Company secretary 22 October 2018)

Result for the year

The result for the year ended 31 December 2018 is is a profit after tax of £nil (2017: £nil). The Directors consider this result to be satisfactory.

Future outlook

The Directors are confident that the Company will maintain its financial position in the future.

Dividends

The Directors did not recommend payment of a dividend in 2018 (2017: £nil).

Annual general meeting

There was no annual general meeting held in the year, as permitted by the Companies Act 2006.

Independent Auditor

The Independent Auditor, KPMG LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

Disclosure of information to the Auditor

So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information (that is, information needed by the Company's Independent Auditor in connection with preparing their report) of which the Company's Independent Auditor is unaware.

Each of the Directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's Auditor is aware of that information.

Approved by the Board on 23 September 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

H S Kidd

Company secretary

Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Review of the Company's business

The principal activity of the Company is to act as a General Partner of a Limited Partnership (SL Capital ECF GP LP), which is the General Partner, of a Limited Partnership (SL Capital European Co-investment LP), ("the Fund"), whose activity is to make private equity investments on a co-investment basis, primarily in Europe.

Key performance indicators ("KPIs")

The Company uses one KPI to monitor the performance of the business throughout the year. This KPI is shown below:

	2018 £	2017 £
Turnover	282,923	177,651

Turnover has increased compared to the prior year, due to an increase in the NAV of the Fund.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the Company's strategy are subject to a number of risks.

The Standard Life Aberdeen Group ("SLA Group"), of which the Company is a part, has established a governance framework for monitoring and overseeing strategy, conduct of business standards and operations of the business across the SLA Group that includes a clearly stated corporate organisational structure, appropriately delegated authorities and independent internal audit and risk management functions. Risk management for the Company operates within this governance framework.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are integrated into the principal risks of the merged SLA Group under Standard Life Aberdeen plc and are therefore not managed separately. Accordingly, the principal risks and uncertainties of SLA plc, which include those of Company, are discussed fully in the SLA plc Annual Report and Accounts which does not form part of this report.

The list below does however provide a summary of the key risks facing both SLA plc and the Company. Further details on each of the risks, together with how they link to our new strategy, how they have evolved over the period and how they are managed can be found in the SLA Group accounts. The principal risks to which the Company is most specifically exposed can be categorised as follows:

Brexit: The Company continues to monitor the ongoing political debate to identify if any existing risk exposures have altered or new risks emerge. The wider SLA plc Group business remains well positioned to benefit from the trends which are shaping the investment landscape although there remains unavoidable uncertainty due to Brexit. Exposure to Brexit not only has the potential to create volatility for our customers' and clients' investments but also the SLA Group's asset management distribution capability to European clients. The Group has established a new Dublin based entity to mitigate the ongoing risks but political risks in the UK and Europe could threaten the operation of services for the Group, as they could for many other industries and companies. Active regulatory engagement and close monitoring of ongoing political debates are in place. Aside from the impact on the Fund, which affects the income recognised in the Company, there is no significant expected impact on the Company from Brexit.

Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Strategic risks: Notably investment performance; distribution and client management; and ensuring we meet the evolving needs of our clients and customers. Political change also continues to be a key strategic risk with the new laws and regulations having the potential to impact both client behaviours and our global operating model.

Operational risk: IT failure and security including cyber risk; third party oversight; and process execution failure.

Conduct risk: Specifically the risk that our behaviours, strategies, decisions and actions deliver unfair outcomes to our customers and clients and/or poor market conduct. We have no appetite for either of these.

Regulatory and legal risk: We operate in a highly regulated industry and our global footprint exposes us to an increasing number of regulatory regimes which have the potential to expose the Company to risks.

Financial market risk: Notably market risk; liquidity risk and counterparty failure.

Environmental matters

The Company follows the environmental strategy of the Standard Life Aberdeen Group which is disclosed within the Standard Life Aberdeen plc accounts.

Approved by the Board on 23 September 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

R Pim Director

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

for the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- · select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
- · make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors' are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2018		
for the year ended of December 2010	2018 £	2017 £
Turnover		
Investment management income	282,923	177,651
Total turnover	282,923	177,651
Operating expenses		
Administrative expenses	(282,923)	(177,651)
Total operating expenses	(282,923)	(177,651)
Result for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company	<u> </u>	

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form part of these financial statements.

The Company has not recorded any other comprehensive income during the years to 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 and has therefore not disclosed a separate statement of comprehensive income.

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018			
	Note	2018 £	2017 £
Assets			
Current assets			
Trade and other receivables	4 .	32,857	3,134
Total assets		32,857	3,134
Equity			
Share capital	5	100	100
Total attributable to equity holders of the Company	•	100	100
Liabilities			
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	6	32,757	3,034
Total liabilities		32,757	3,034
Total equity and liabilities	•	32,857	3,134

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form part of these financial statements

The financial statements and accompanying notes on pages 9 to 13 were approved on behalf of the Board of Directors on 23 September 2019 and signed on its behalf by the following Director:

R Pim Director

Registration number: SC473807

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2018

The Company has not recognised any changes in equity during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form part of these financial statements.

for the year ended 31 December 2018

1 Accounting policies

The Company's significant accounting policies are included at the beginning of the relevant note. This section outlines the basis of preparation, significant accounting policies which apply to the financial statements as a whole, and a summary of the Company's critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under Application of Financial Reporting Requirements 100 as issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly, the financial statements for period ended 31 December 2018 have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework ("FRS 101") as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

In these financial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures:

- · Cash Flow Statement and related notes;
- · Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;
- · Disclosures in relation to the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs;

As the consolidated financial statements of Standard Life Aberdeen plc include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures:

Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7
Financial Instrument Disclosures.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Standard Life Aberdeen plc and is therefore exempt from the requirement to prepare consolidated accounts by virtue of section 401 of the Companies Act 2006.

For the transition to FRS 101 (which has occurred during the current-year), the Company has applied IAS 1 whilst ensuring its assets and liabilities are measured in compliance with FRS 101, effective from 1 January 2017, the beginning of the comparative period. This transition has had no significant impact on the Company's financial position, performance, equity or total comprehensive income for either the year-ended 31 December 2018 or the comparative period ended 31 December 2017, and has resulted in no impairment losses as at 31 December 2017. The most recent financial statements prepared under International Financial Reports Standards were for the year to 31 December 2017.

(ii) New interpretations and amendments to existing standard that have been adopted by the Company

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

IFRS 15 has replaced IAS 18 'Revenue' and related interpretations. IFRS 15 provides a new five-step revenue recognition model for determining recognition and measurement of revenue from contracts with customers. A detailed impact assessment was completed for all major revenue streams, reviewing contracts and analysing the revenue recognised. No significant impacts to profit or net assets were identified for the Company.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'

IFRS 9 has replaced IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. There has been no material impact on the Company's financial performance or position and no comparative numbers have been adjusted following the adoption of IFRS 9.

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Revenue recognition

Investment management income

All fees and costs associated with the provision of investment management services are recognised, subject to recoverability, as the services are provided.

(c) Expense recognition

Administrative expenses are recognised on an accruals basis.

(d) Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions and fair values are translated using the exchange rates applying to the functional currency, which is Sterling, prevailing at the dates of the transactions or at the date the fair value was determined, with related foreign currency exchange gains or losses reflected in the income statement.

(e) Financial assets - designation

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of financial position date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Company's loans and receivables comprise 'Trade and other receivables' in the statement of financial position.

Payables

Payables are transactions with another Standard Life Aberdeen Group company or the Fund. There are no maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of financial position date and so are classified as current liabilities. The Company's payables comprise 'Trade and other payables' in the statement of financial position.

2 Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with IFRS, may require the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made no key estimates or judgements.

3 Result before tax

The Company has no employees (2017: nil) and is managed by SL Capital Partners LLP. Certain expenses, including auditors' remuneration for audit services amounting to £3,500 (2017: £2,500), are met by SL Capital Partners LLP. All other expenses are in relation to management fees charged by SL Capital Partners LLP.

4 Trade and other receivables

Accounting policy

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

4 Trade and other receivables (continued)

	2018 £	2017 f
Amounts due from Standard Life Aberdeen Group undertakings	100	100
Amounts due from Fund	32,757	3,034
Total trade and other receivables	32,857	3,134

All 'Trade and other receivables' are current and have no contractual maturity date. All of the financial assets above are non-interest bearing.

5 Share capital

Accounting policy

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Shares are classified as equity instruments when there is no contractual obligation to deliver cash or other assets to another entity on terms that may be unfavourable.

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

	2018		2017	
	No.	£	No.	£
Ordinary shares of £1 each	100	100	100	100

6 Trade and other payables		
Accounting policy Trade and other payables are recognised at their initial fair value cost.	and subsequently measured	at amortised
	2018	2017
	£	£
Amounts owed to Standard Life Aberdeen Group undertakings	32,757	3,034
Total trade and other payables	32,757	3,034

All 'Trade and other payables' are non-interest bearing and are current or have no contractual maturity date

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

7 Related party transactions

(a) Parent and ultimate controlling party

The Company's parent undertaking is SLCP (Holdings) Limited (registered office 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2, 2LL), whilst its ultimate controlling party is Standard Life Aberdeen plc (registered office 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2, 2LL).

Copies of the Annual Report and Accounts of Standard Life Aberdeen plc are available to download from the website www.standardlifeaberdeen.com.

(b) Transactions between and balances with related parties

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into transactions with related parties in respect of its investment management business. Such related party transactions are unsecured.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 not to disclose transactions with fellow wholly owned subsidiaries.

The following are details of significant transactions with not wholly owned related parties during the year and the year end balances arising from such transactions:

		2018	3	
	Revenue £	Expenses £	Amounts owed by related parties £	Amounts owed to related parties £
Standard Life Aberdeen Group undertakings	-	282,923	-	32,757
Other	282,923	<u> </u>	32,757	
	282,923	282,923	32,757	32,757
		2017	1	
	Revenue	Expenses	Amounts owed by related parties	Amounts owed to related parties
Standard Life Abardson Group undertakings	£	£	£	£ 2.024
Standard Life Aberdeen Group undertakings Other	177,651	177,651 	3,034	3,034
	177,651	177,651	3,034	3,034

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received in the year or prior year. No expense for bad and doubtful debts has been recognised in the current year, or prior year, in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

7 Related party transactions (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

No amounts are payable to the Directors in respect of their services to the Company as at 31 December 2018 (2017: £nil).

8 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 requires disclosure of certain information about the Company's related undertakings. The Company has no disclosures in related undertakings.

9 Unconsolidated structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, or when the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.

The Company has assessed whether the funds it manages are structured entities, through review of the above factors, including the rights to remove the Group as fund manager or other key management role. The Company considers the Fund to be an unconsolidated structured entity.

Assets under management in the unconsolidated structured entity total £62,113,532 (2017: £55,514,360). Revenue recognised by the Company from the unconsolidated structured entity during the year was £282,923 (2017: £177,651).

10 Investment holdings

The indirect holding of the Fund is listed below.

Name of undertaking: SL Capital ECF GP LP.

Country of registration: United Kingdom

Registered office: 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2LL.

In line with Companies Act requirements, the Company considers the Fund to be a subsidiary entity.

11 Events after the statement of financial position date

There have been no significant events after the reporting period.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited ("the company") for the year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Notes to the Financial Statements, including the accounting policies.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its profit for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors, including related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the Company's future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the Company's future prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company's financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements ("the going concern period").

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the directors' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company's business model, including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company's financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in operation.

Strategic report and directors' report

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited (continued)

The directors are responsible for the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

- · we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report;
- in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements; and
- in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception text

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- · the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- · certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited (continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ph Literan

John Waterson (Senior Statutory Auditor) For and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court
20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh
United Kingdom
EH1 2EG

23 September 2019

SLC EC I Executive Co investment Limited Partnership

Financial Statements for the period from 13 December 2017 (date of inception) to 31 December 2018

Table of Contents	Page
Manager, General Partner and Advisors	1
Report of the General Partner	2
Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities	3
Statement of Comprehensive Income	4
Statement of Financial Position	5
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners	6
Statement of Cash Flows	7
Notes to the Financial Statements	8

Important Note

The contents of this report do not constitute advice and no person should make any investment decisions in reliance on the contents of this report.

Manager, General Partner and Advisors

Registered Address

1 George Street

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

W.K.

Manager and Principal

Place of Business

SL Capital Partners LLP

1 George Street

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

U.K.

General Partner

(and Founder Partner)

SL Capital ECF GP LP

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

ÚK.

UK Legal Advisor

Goodwin Procter (UK) LLP

100 Cheapside London, EC2V 6DY

U.K.

Administrator

IQ EQ Administration Services (UK) Ltd

(formerly: Augentius (UK) Ltd)

Two London Bridge London, SE1 9RA

U.K.

Report of the General Partner

The General Partner, St. Capital ECF GP LP, presents the financial statements for St.C EC 1 Executive Co investment Umited Partnership ("the Partnership") for the period from 13 December 2017 ("inception") to 31 December 2018.

Structure of the Partnership

The Partnership is a Limited Partnership, established in Scotland, United Kingdom (*U.K.*). The Partnership held a first and final oldes on 20 December 2017 with total commitments of €1.7 million from twenty-one Limited Partners. The structure of the Partnership is detailed further in note 1 to the financial statements.

Directors of the General Partner

Please refer to the financial statements of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited for the names of the Directors.

Distributions

There were no distributions made during the period.

Events after the reporting date

The General Partner has identified no significant events after the reporting date.

Leurneller

Results, activities and future developments

The results for the period are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive income on page 4. A description of the principal activity of the Partnership is provided in note 1 to the financial statements.

The Manager's Report for SL Capital European Co-investment LP ("the Fund"), which is issued separately, contains detailed analysis of each of the Partnership's investments, together with commentary on the economic climate and how this impacts the private equity market.

Data protection

SL Capital Partners LLP ("the Manager") has implemented measures that it believes are necessary in order to comply with the Guitaral Data Protection Regulation.

Strategic report

The Partnership is considered as "small" under Section 4148 of The Companies Act 2008 (Strategic Report and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013 and is therefore exempt from preparing a strategic report.

Signed on behalf of the General Partner

lan Harris

Director, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

2 May 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 require the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with Part 15 and Chapter 1 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Under that law the General Partner has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law.

Under company law the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- · make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;
- assess the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related going concern; and
- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic atternative but to do so.

The General Partner is responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Partnership and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

	Inception to 31 December 2018
Income	•
Net unrealised movement on investment	280,586
Total net income	280,566
Operating profit	200,566
Increase in not assets attributable to Partners from operations	280,566

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations.

The Partnership has no components of other comprehensive income in the current period.

The notes 1 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position

	Notes	At 31 December 2018 €
Assets		
Non-current assets		
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	8	1,568,215
Current assets		
Trade and other receivables	A	434
Cash and cash equivalents		<u></u>
		434
Current liabilities		
Trade and other payables	5	(433)
		(433)
Net current assets		<u> </u>
Net assets attributable to Partners		1,568,216
Répresented by:		
Partners' capital account		173
Partners' loan account		1,287,478
Partners' current account	•	280,566
Net assets attributable to Partners		1,568,216

For the period ending 31 December 2018, the Partnership was entitled to exemption from audit under section 477 of the Companies Act of 2006 relating to small companies.

The Limited Partners have not required the Partnership to obtain an audit in accordance with section 476 of the Companies Act 2006,

The notes 1 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lammeller

The financial statements set out on pages 4 to 15 were approved by the General Partner on 2 May 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

tan Harris Director, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners

	Inception to 31 December 2018 €
Pertners' capital drawn	171
Pariners' loan drawn	1,297,479
Not drawn	1,287,680
increase in net assets attributable to Partners from operations	280,566
Net assets attributable to Partners at the end of the period	1,568,216

The notes 1 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

	tńception fo 31 December 2018 €
Cash flows from operating activities	
Operating profit	260,566
Net unrealised movement on investment in the Fund	(280,565)
Contributions to the Fund	(1,288,011)
Not cash outflow from operating activities	(1,288,011)
Cash flows from financing activities	
Partners' capital drawn	170
Paitners' loan drawn	1,287,841
Net cash inflow from financing activities	1,288,011
Not increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	₩′
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period	, -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period	

The notes 1 to 10 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1. Partnership background

The Partnership consists of one Limited Partnership registered in Sculland, U.K. and was established on 13 December 2017. At the Final close on 20 December 2017 total commitments amounted to €1.7 million from twenty-one Limited Partners. The Limited Partners' capital contributions equal 0.01% of their total commitment.

SL Capital ECF GP LP is the General and Founder Partner of the Partnership and has contributed €1 to the Partnership as the Founder Partner. The Manager of the Partnership is SL Capital Partners LLP, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and is a U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission registered investment advisor based in Edinburgh, U.K. The Partnership has no employees.

The Partnership was formed for the purpose of co-investing in the Fund. The Partnership shall continue until the expiry of 90 days after the termination of the Fund.

The structure of the Partnership at 31 December 2018 was as follows:

	At .
	31 December 2018
	t
Commitments	1,702,501
Partners' capital drawn	171
Partners' loan drawn	1,287,479
Funded	1,287,650
% of Commitments	75.63%

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Beats of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and flabilities measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL"), and in accordance with the Limited Pertnership Agreement. The Parlnership is denominated in Euro, international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as adopted by the EU and the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying parlnerships, have been applied in all aspects of the preparation of the financial statements.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IPRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, it also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Partnership's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant, are disclosed in note 3.

2.2 New and revised accounting standards / amendments effective for the current period

New and revised accounting standards that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and have been adopted by the Partnership are listed below.

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments'

IFRS 9 'Financial instruments' replaces IAS 39 'Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and introduces new requirements for the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, impairment and for hedge accounting. The nature and impact of IFRS 9 is outlined below:

(I) Recognition, classification and measurement:

IFRS 9 establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets; amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") and FVPL.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 New and revised accounting standards / amendments effective for the current period (continued)

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments' (continued)

Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Parthership has assessed the classification of recognised linearcial instruments both at date of initial application and representatively; concluding that:

- All financial assets already held at FVPL under IAS 59 continue to be measured at fair value through profit or loss;
- Investments in subsidiaries and associates continue to be measured at talk value in accordance with IFRS 10 and IAS 28;
- Financial assets previously classified as found and receivables under IAS 39, that meet the new dual test criteria are new classified as financial assets at amortised cost; and
- Debt instruments held as part of a portfolio of assets managed and evaluated on the business model basis of fair value, previously held at fair value under IAS 39, continue to be measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial liabilities under IFRS 9 remains broadly similar to that under IAS 39. The Partnership has no financial liabilities designated at FVPL so there is no impact from the adoption of IFRS 9 with regards to financial liabilities.

Whilet the classification, measurement and recognition requirements of IFRS 9 have been retrospectively applied, the Partnership has opted, as permitted, not to restate comparatives; therefore, they continue to be presented in accordance with IAS 39.

Considering both the characteristics of financial instruments and the approach to their management, the adoption of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any revocation of designations, nor any new designations of financial assets or liabilities.

There have been no changes in the carrying amounts of financial instruments due to changes in measurement category. Financial assets previously measured at EVPL continue to be so. Those measured at amortised cost continue to be so. Further, the application of the expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model as applied to financial instruments held at amortised cost has not significantly changed their carrying value. The carrying values of amortised cost financial instruments under IAS 39 continue to approximate their fair values on the date of transition to IFRS 9.

(II) Impeirment:

Under IAS 39, the Partnership was required to recognise an impairment loss on financial instruments held at amortised cost when objective suddence of impairment existed. Upon adoption of IFRS 9, impairment is assessed either on a forthcoming 12-month or lifetime basis and recognised initially and at subsequent reporting dates at the full amount of the ECL, within that period. The Partnership holds only receivables and contract assets at amortised cost with no significant financing component* and therefore has chosen to apply the simplified approach to assessment of ECL, making a lifetime assessment of credit loss based on relevant, supportable information about the future.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has brought no material impact on the financial statements through the recognition, timing or measurement of impairment loss.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and Clarifications to IFRS 15 ("Clarifications")

IFRS 15 supersides IAS 11 'Construction Contracts', IAS 18 'Revenue' and related interpretations. The core principle of the new standard is for entitles to recognise revenue depicting the transfer of goods or services to austomers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Partnership is entitled. This is applied using a five-step model.

Suldance on the recognition and presentation of interest and dividend income now talls within the acope of IFRS 9. A consequential amendment to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" has clarified that only interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost can be presented within the revenue line item of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Partnership's interest income from financial assets held at FVPL continues to be separately identified from revenue as 'Interest income'.

There has been no material impact following the adoption of IFRS 15 in either revenue recognised by the Partnership nor in the timing or pattern of revenue recognition within portfolio companies held as financial assets at FVPL.

2.3 New accounting staindards / amendments not yet effective

Standards amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Partnership are fished overteal.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 New accounting standards / amendments not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The LASR issued a narrow scope amendment to IFRS 9 in October 2017 which updates the solidy payments of principal and interest test: borrowings that include a contractual term under which an early repayment results in a settlement discount will now be deemed to have cashflows of solely principal and interest and are consequently measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI rather than FVPL. This has been termed 'negative compensation' as in effect the lender is paying the borrower compensation for early settlement.

The emendment is affective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This has been endorsed by the EU. The Partnership will adopt the amendment when it becomes effective.

2.4 Going concern

The General Partner has made an assessment of the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Partnership has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the General Partner is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.6 Financial period

The financial statements are prepared from inception to 31 December 2018. No comparatives are presented as this is the Partnership's first accounting period.

2.6 Functional currency

The General Partner considers the Euro ("€") as the Partnership's functional and presentational currency as it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

Unrealised foreign currency exchange gains and losses on non-Euro denominated investments arising from changes in foreign unnearry exchange rates and realised foreign exchange gains and losses on income and expenses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Non-Euro denominated assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate at the Statement of Financial Position data. Non-Euro income and expense transactions are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

2.7 Income, expenses, gains and losses

All income and expenses, inclusive of realised gains and losses, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Net income, gains and losses of the Partnership are allocated under the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement. Details are set out in note 2.16.

2.8 investment entity

The General Partner has determined that the Partnership is an investment entity as per IFRS 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements". Details are set out in note 3.2

2.9 Invistment in the Fund

The Partnership records its investment in the Fund at fair value. Accordingly, the Partnership's share of the Fund's net investment income as net unrealised and movement in unrealised gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income as net unrealised movement on investment. Further details are set out in note 3.1.

2.10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Initial recognition

Financial assets have been designated upon initial recognition at FVPL. On the date of making a legal commitment to invest in a fund, such commitment is recorded and disclosed. When funds are drawn in respect of such commitment, the resulting investment is recognised in the financial statements.

Measurement

Financial assets at FVPL are initially recognised at fair value as detailed in note 3.1. Transaction costs are expensed and included within gains and losses on investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Measurement (confinued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from underlying instruments have expired or the entity has transferred substantially all rick and rewards of ownership.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. At 31 December 2018, there were no cash equivalents.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less the appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Payables and accrued expenses are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.14 Taxation

No provision has been made in the financial statements for taxation of the General Partner and the Limited Partners. All Partners are individually responsible for reporting their share of the Partnership's income, gains and losses for taxation purposes.

2.15 Net appets attributable to Pertners

The Partnership's contributed capital consists of capital and loan contributions. Not assets attributable to Partners is classified as a financial flability, due to the Partners in the Partners.

2.15 Distribution of Income proceeds and capital proceeds between Partners

The Partnership's net Income, gains and losses are allocated in accordance with the distribution provisions of the Limited Partnership.

Distributions are allocated pro rata in accordance with each Limited Partner's commitment.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

There are key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and itabilities within the next financial year. The Partnership based its assumptions and estimates on parameters evaluable when the financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances ensing beyond the control of the Partnership. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3.4 Fair value of inventments not quoted in an active market

The investment in the Fund is valued at the balance of its share of net assets in that partnership, which the General Partner considers to equal fair value.

The Fund's Investments are valued by the Fund's General Partner with reference to the "international Private Equity and Various Capital Valuation Guidelines" (the Guidelines"). They are stated at the Fund's General Partner's estimate of fair value and will follow the recommendations of the Guidelines. The estimate of fair value is based on the latest valuation placed on a fund by its manager, adjusted, if required, for cash flows between the date of the manager's report and the Fund's statement of financial position. See note 3 "Critical accounting estimates and judgements" in the Fund's financial statements at 31 December 2018 for further information.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

3.2 Importment ontity status

The Partnership was set up with an intention to have multiple investors and indirectly hold multiple investments. Ownership interests in the Partnership are in the form of the Partnership share of capital and are exposed to variable natures from changes in the fair value of the Partnership's net assets. The Partnership has been deamed to meet the definition of an investment entity per IFRS 10. 'Consolidated Financial Statements', as the following conditions exist:

- (f) The Partnership has obtained funds for the purpose of providing investors with investment management services;
- (ii) The Partnership's business purpose, which was communicated directly to investors visithe Limited Partnership Agreement, is providing Partners with an overall rate of return from investments by means of both income and capital growth; and
- (III) The performance of investments made is measured and avaluated on a fair value basis.

4. Trade and other receivables

	At
	31 December 2018
	€
Due from the Fund	362
Due from Limited Partners	71
Due from General Partner	1
	434
5. Trade and other payables	
	At
	31 December 2018
	€
Due to Limited Partners	433
	433

6. Related party disclosure

The Limited Partnership Agreement provides that St. Capital ECF GP LP shall act as General Partner. The Partnership does not pay any management profit share to the General Partner. At 31 December 2018, €362 was due from the Fund for the overpayment of loan contributions. The General Partner of St. Capital ECF GP LP is BLCP (General Partner EC) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of St.CP (Holdings) Limited, which is a subsidiary of the ultimate parent, Standard Life Aberdeen plc. The registered address of St.CP (Holdings) Limited and Standard Life Aberdeen plc is 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2LL, United Kingdom.

The Partnership does not pay any management profit share to the Manager.

Certain members and employees of the Manager are investors in the Partnership and are entitled to participate in the profits as disclosed in note 2.16.

At 31 December 2018, the General Partner owed €1 to the Partnership as initial capital contribution.

7. Financial risk management

The overall strategy for the management of investment risk is driven by the investment policy as set out in the Limited Partnership Agreement. This is reviewed periodically by the Manager and Advisory Committee. Investments are selected by the Manager to achieve the investment objective of generating attractive returns, subject to prudent diversification. As a matter of policy there are no pre-set sector allocations, however, risk is agreed by investing across a range of countries, industrial sectors and vintage years. The Partnership's financial sessis are predominantly unsecured investments in limited partnerships, in which the maximum risk is considered to be the amount committed.

7. Financial risk management (continued)

The Partnership's activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of financial risks to which the Partnership is exposed are market risk (including price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The risk management policies employed by the Partnership are detailed below.

7.1 Market rick

a) Price risk

The Partnership is at risk of the economic cycle impacting the quoted markets and hence potentially the pricing of investment deals, the valuation of underlying investments and the price and siming of edits.

Price risk is managed at the Fund level. Price risk is minimised by the Manager constructing a diversified portfolio of Co-investments. At 31 December 2018, the Fund level had 14 Co-investments. More detail on the sector and geographic analysis is provided in the Manager's Report of the Fund.

A 10% increase in the 31 December 2018 valuation of the Partnership's Investments would have increased net assets attributable to Partners by €156,822. A 10% change in the opposite direction would have decreased net assets attributable to Partners by an equivalent amount.

b) Currency risk

The Fund makes commitments in currencies other than Euro and accordingly a proportion of its net assets are in currencies other than Euro. As a result, the Fund's statement of financial position is sensitive to movements in foreign exchange rates. The Fund has not hedged its foreign currency exposure, however, any cash received in a currency other than Euro is converted into Euro to minimise the exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates.

The currency risk is managed in the Fund, hence the Paninership has no significant exposure to currency risk on monetary items.

7.2 Credit rink

Credit risk is the exposure to loss arising from the failure of a counterparty to deliver securities or cash for acquisitions or disposals of investments or to repay deposits.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, in the event that counterparties fall to perform their obligations as at the year end (in relation to each class of recognised financial assets), is the carrying amount of those assets in the Statement of Financial Position. At the reporting date, the Partnership's financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to the following:

	At 31 December 2018
	i e
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	1,668,215
Trade and other receivables	434
	1,668,649

The Partnership places cash with authorised deposit takers and, therefore, is potentially at risk from the failure of any such institution. At 31 December 2018, all of the Partnership's cash was held by Societe Generale which was rated "A" by Standard & Poor's at the date of the Report of the General Partner.

At 31 December 2018, the assets field by the Partnership are not past due or impaired.

7.3 Liquidity risk

The Fund's livestments are in unquoted fund investments which are not traded in a regulated public market and are generally liftquid. As a result the Fund may not be able to quickly liquidate these portrollo investments at an amount equal to their fair value, in order to meet its liquidity requirements. The Manager mitigates this risk by regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure sufficient cash is held to meet liabilities as they fail due.

7. Financial risk management (continued)

7.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

During the period ended 31 December 2018, the Partnership generated an operating profit of £280,588 and cash resources at the end of the period amounted to €Nii. The flabilities of the Partnership (excluding not assets attributable to Partners) are due on demand. In addition, the Partnership had available to it undrawn commitments of £414,851 from its Limited Partners, which are also due on demand.

The tables below analyse the Partnership's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 December 2018

Liabilities Trade and other payables Net assets attributable to Partners Total liabilities	On domand	Less than if year if 433	Between 1 and 3 years €	More than 3 years € 1,568,218	Total
Total unfunded commitments to Fund investments	414,851				414,851

7.4 Capital risk management

The capital of the Partnership is represented by the net assets attributable to Partners. The Partnership's objective when managing the capital is to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for Partners and benefits for other staksholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment scitvities of the Partnership. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may call unfunded commitments from the Limited Partners or distribute funds to the Limited Partners.

The General Partner monitors capital on the basis of the value of the net assets attributable to Partners.

8. Fair value measurement

IFRS 7 requires a three-level hierarchy disclosure for categorising financial assets and fiabilities carried at fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy classifies financial assets and liabilities according to the source of inputs ranked according to availability of observable market prices used in measuring fair value as follows:

- Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Lovel 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
- Level 3 Inputs for the easet or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety should be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The categorisation of an investment within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of that investment. The Partnership's investment has been classified within Level 3 as it has unobservable inputs and trades infrequently or not at all.

The determination of what constitutes "observable" requires significant judgement by the General Partner. The General Partner considers observable data to be market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by multiple, independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

8. Fair value measurement (continued)

The following table analysis within the fair value hierarchy the Partnership's investment measured at fair value:

At 31 December 2018

	Lavel 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	**	. •.	1,568,215	1,568,215

There were no transfers between levels during the current period.

Determining the fair value of the Partnership's Investment requires judgement and considers factors specific to the Investment. The valuation policies applied by the General Partner are detailed in note 3.1.

The changes in the Partnership's Investment measured at fair value for which the Partnership has used Level 3 inputs to determine fair value are as follows:

	31 December 2018 : 6
Purchases	1,287,649
Realised and unrealised gains	280,866
Balance at the end of the period	1,558,215
Unrealised movement included in profit or loss related to investment	•

numbers trickerisett urrinden at biout of loss leighen to investitiour

still field at the reporting date:

- Net unrealised movement on investment

280,566

9. Unconsolidated collective investment vehicles and limited partnerships

The Partnership's interests in unconsolidated structured antities comprise investments in collective investment vehicles such as limited partnerships with a total carrying value of €1,568,215, included within financial assets at FVPL (see note 8).

At 31 December 2018, the total size of these unconsolidated structured entitles, including the portion in which the Parimership has no interest, was 630.2 million.

The Parlnership's maximum exposure to loss is equal to the carrying value of the investments. The collective investment vehicles are primarily financed by contributions from investors in the vehicles.

10. Events after the reporting date

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to 2 May 2019. There are no significant events identified after the reporting date.

SL Capital ECF GP LP

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Table of Contents	Page
Manager, General Partner and Advisor	₩-
Report of the General Partner	7
Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities	ო
Independent Auditor's Report	4
Statement of Comprehensive Income	ဖ
Statement of Financial Position	7
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners	ω
Notes to the Financial Statements	თ

important Note
The contents of this report do not constitute advice and no person should make any investment decisions in reliance on the contents of this report.

Manager, General Partner and Advisor

Registered Address

1 George Street Edinburgh, EH2 2LL U.K.

Manager and Principal Place of Business

St. Capital Partners LLP 1 George Street

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

General Partner

SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited 1 George Street Edinburgh, EH2 2LL U.K.

Legal Advisor

Goodwin Procter (UK) LLP 100 Cheapside London, EC2V 6DY U.K.

Independent Auditor

KPMG LLP

Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace Edinburgh, EH1 2EG

Administrator

IQ EQ Administration Services (UK) Ltd (formerly: Augentius (UK) Ltd) Two London Bridge London, SE1 9RA U.K.

Report of the General Partner

statements for SL Capital ECF GP LP ("the Partnership") for the year ended 31 The General Partner, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited, presents the audited financial December 2018.

Structure of the Partnership

The Partnership was formed on 18 June 2014 and is registered in Scotland, United Kingdom ("U.K.").

Directors of the General Partner

There have been no changes to the Directors of the General Partner during the year. Please refer to the financial statements of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited for the names of the Directors.

Distributions

Distributions of €322,253 (2017: €204,242) were made during the year.

Events after the reporting date

The General Partner has identified no significant events after the reporting date.

Results, activities and future developments

6. A description of the principal activity of the Partnership is provided in note 1 to the The results for the year are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page financial statements. The purpose of the Partnership is to act as General Partner to SL Capital European Coinvestment LP ("ECF LP") and SL Capital European Co-investment B LP ("ECF B LP").

Going concern basis

with the ongoing financial support of Standard Life Investments Limited, a related party to the Manager, will continue to be in a position to meet liabilities as they fall due and as such the General Partner deems it appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Partnership on the going concern basis. The General Partner acknowledges that there Notwithstanding net liabilities of €18,859 at 31 December 2018, the Partnership, along

can be no certainty that this support will continue, although, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Disclosure of information to auditor

At the date of this report, the General Partner confirms that:

- As far as the General Partner is aware, there is no relevant information of which the Partnership's auditor is unaware; and
- The General Partner has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken as a General Partner in order to make it aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership's auditor is aware of that information.

independent auditor

The General Partner has appointed KPMG LLP as auditor to the Partnership.

Data protection

SL Capital Partners LLP ("the Manager") has implemented measures that it believes are necessary in order to comply with the General Data Protection Regulation.

Strategic report

The Partnership is considered as "small" under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013 and it is therefore exempt from preparing a strategic report.

Signed on behalf of the General Partner

Lanna

lan Harris Director, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

19 June 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 require the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with Part 15 and Chapter 1 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Under that law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Section 1A of FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities).

Under company law the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent:
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- assess the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate
 the Partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do

The General Partner is responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Partnership and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital ECF GP LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SL Capital ECF GP LP (the "Qualifying Partnership") for the year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners and related notes, including the accounting policies

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Qualifying Partnership's affairs as at 31
 December 2018 and of its profit for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards applicable to smaller entities, including Section 1A of FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations
 2008

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) "ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Qualifying Partnership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Other matter

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the General Partner and related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the Qualifying Partnership's future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the Qualifying Partnership's future prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The General Partner has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Qualifying Partnership or to cease its operations, and they have concluded that the Qualifying Partnership's financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements ("the going concern period").

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the General Partner's conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Qualifying Partnership's business model, including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the Qualifying Partnership's financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Qualifying Partnership will continue in operation.

General Partner's report

The General Partner is responsible for the General Partner's report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover that report and we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the General Partner's report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital ECF GP LP (continued)

General Partner's report (continued)

Based solely on that work:

- we have not identified material misstatements in that report;
- in our opinion the information given in the General Partner's report for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements; and
- in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
 or
- certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
- the General Partner was not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption, as applied to qualifying partnerships, from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

General Partner's responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 3, the General Partner is responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Qualifying Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Qualifying Partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Qualifying Partnership's partners, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Qualifying Partnership's partners those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Qualifying Partnership and its partners, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.



Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court
20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh
EH1 2EG

Statement of Comprehensive Income

	Year	Year ended 31 December 2018	8	Year	Year ended 31 December 2017	. 2017
	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total*	Carried Interest Partners	General	Totai*
	₩	•	•	•	W	w
Turnover						
Income	•	322,253	322,253	•	204,242	204,242
Expenditure						
Administration and other expenses	(6,876)	ı	(6,876)	(5,720)	1	(5,720)
Net foreign exchange loss on non-investments	(21)	•	(21)	(43)	•	(43)
Total (loss) / profit for the year attributable to Partners	(6,897)	322,263	315,356	(6,763)	204,242	198,479

*The total column provides the required figures under FRS 102 Section 1A.

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations.

The Partnership has no components of other comprehensive income in the current and comparative year.

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2018

Statement of Financial Position

		•					
	8	Carried Interest Partners	General	Total*	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total*
	Notes	₩	•	Ψ	w	9	w
Fixed assets							
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	ω 	710		710	710	•	710
Current assets							
Debtors	ဖ	114	39,794	39,908	114	3,418	3,532
Cash and cash equivalents		490	•	490	205	•	207
		604	39,794	40,398	621	3,418	4,039
Current liabilities							
Creditors due within one year	7	(20,173)	(39,794)	(29,967)	(13,293)	(3,418)	(16,711)
Net current liabilities	!	(19,569)	'	(19,569)	(12,672)		(12,672)
Net liabilities attributable to Partners		(18,869)		(18,859)	(11,962)		(11,962)
Represented by:							
Partners' capital account		710	•	710	710	,	710
Partners' loan account		•	(593,398)	(593,398)	•	(271,145)	(271,145)
Partners' current account		(19,569)	593,398	573,829	(12,672)	271,145	258,473
Net liabilities attributable to Partners		(18,859)		(18,859)	(11,962)	\$	(11,962)

^{*}The total column provides the required figures under FRS 102 Section 14.

Lammer

lan Harris Director, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

سخ

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102 Section 1A – small entities.

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements set out on pages 6 to 13 were approved by the General Partner on 19 June 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Year ended 31 December 2017

Year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners

	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total*	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total*
	w	w	¥	Ψ	Ψ	w
Net liabilities attributable	(11,962)	1	(11,962)	(6,313)	•	(6,313)
to Partners at the start of the year						
Partners' capital drawn	•	•	•	114	1	114
Distributions to Partners	•	(322,253)	(322,253)	•	(204,242)	(204,242)
Total (distributed) / drawn	•	(322,253)	(322,253)	114	(204,242)	(204,128)
Total (loss) / profit for the year attributable to Partners	(6,897)	322,253	315,356	(5,763)	204,242	198,479
Net liabilities attributable						
to Partners at the end of the year	(18,859)	•	(18,859)	(11,962)	•	(11,962)

*The total column provides the required figures under FRS 102 Section 1A.

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ļ

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Partnership background

The Partnership was formed for the purpose of acting as the General Partner of ECF LP and ECF B LP. The Partnership is registered in Scotland, U.K. and was established on 18 June 2014 with a commitment of €100 from its Carried Interest Partners. The combined commitments of the Carried Interest Partners were adjusted to €596 following the final close of ECF LP and ECF B LP. The Manager of the Partnership is SL Capital Partners LLP, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and is a U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission registered investment advisor based in Edinburgh, U.K.

The Partnership shall continue until the expiry of 90 days after the termination of ECF LP. The Partnership has no employees.

2. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 Section 1A, the Companies Act 2006 and the Regulations. The Statement of Cash Flows is not included as this is exempt under FRS 102 Section 1A.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss. The financial statements are presented in Euro ("€"), which is also the Partnership's functional currency. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 Section 1A requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Partnership's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant, are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Going concern

The General Partner has made an assessment of the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Partnership, along with the ongoing financial support of Standard Life Investments Limited, a related party to the Manager, has the resources to continue in business for the foreseable future. The General Partner is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

As with any entity placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the General Partner acknowledges that there can be no certainty that this support will continue atthough, at the date of approval of these financial statements, has no reason to believe that it will not do so.

3.3 Income, expenses, gains and losses

All income and expenses, inclusive of realised gains and losses, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This includes amounts arising in ECF LP and ECF B LP which have been allocated to the Partnership's account in ECF LP and ECF B LP.

Management profit share is received from ECF LP and ECF B LP as the first charge on net income and net realised gains in any accounting period whether or not there are sufficient net income and net realised gains in that accounting period. The full management profit share received by the Partnership from ECF LP and ECF B LP is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.4 Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Other financial assets, such as Investments, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Financial instruments (continued)

a) Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another party or (c) control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

b) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities including trade and other payables are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest.

These financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective necest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

3.5 Functional currency

The General Partner considers the Euro as the Partnership's functional and presentational currency as it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

Non-Euro denominated assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate at the Statement of Financial Position date. Non-Euro income and expense transactions are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Exchange rates at 31 December 2018: Exchange rates at 31 December 2017:

1		יש	
Sterling	£0.8976	Sterling	£0.8877
U.S. Dollar	\$1.1432	U.S. Dollar	\$1.2008

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there were no cash equivalents.

3.7 Taxatton

No provision has been made in the financial statements for taxation of the Partners. All Partners are individually responsible for reporting their share of the Partnership's income, gains and losses for taxation purposes.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

There are key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Partnership based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Partnership. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

4.1 Fair value of investments not quoted in an active market

The investments in ECF LP and ECF B LP are stated at fair value as estimated by the General Partner. The General Partner considers the balance of the Partnership's capital account in ECF LP and ECF B LP as being equal to fair value.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	Ata	At 31 December 2018		At 3	At 31 December 2017	
	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total
Investment in ECF B LP	374		374	374	1	374
Investment in ECF LP	336		336	336	•	336
	710		710	710		710
6. Debtors						
	*	At 31 December 2018		At	At 31 December 2017	
	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total
	w	Ψ	•	Ψ	Ψ	w
Due from ECF B LP	·	20,100	20,100	•	3,201	3,201
Due from ECF LP	ŧ	19,694	19,694	•	217	217
Due from Carried Interest Partners	114	•	114	114	3	114
	114	39,794	39,908	114	3,418	3,532

There were no debtors falling due after more than one year at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

_	
<u>=</u>	
ã	
5	
•	
×	
ត	
•	
≘	
7	
7	
5	
3	
4	
3	
Ū	
-	
Ľ	
0	
뽀	
Ŧ	
ð	
Ę	
u	

	At:	At 31 December 2018		At	At 31 December 2017	
	Carried interest Partners	General Partner	Total	Carried Interest Partners	General Partner	Total
	w	w	w	w	w	w
Due to General Partner	•	39,794	39,794	•	3,418	3,418
Due to ECF LP	9,272	•	9,272	3,411	1	3,411
Due to ECF B LP	5,024	•	5,024	4,081	•	4,081
Administration fee accrual	3,342	,	3,342	3,300		3,300
Audit fee accrual	2,535	• [2,535	2,501	•	2,501
	20,173	39,794	59,967	13,293	3,418	16,711

8. Allocation of the Partnership's net income, gains and losses

The Partnership's net income, gains and losses are allocated in accordance with the distribution provisions of the Limited Partnership Agreement. Amounts received by the Partnership in respect of management profit share from ECF LP and ECF B LP are allocated to the General Partner. Amounts received in respect of the Partnership's capital commitment to ECF LP and ECF B LP are allocated to the Carried Interest Partners in proportion to their capital contributions. At 31 December 2018, no amounts in respect of carried interest had been received (2017: ENII).

At 31 December 2018, no carried interest allocation had been made to the Partnership.

Related party transactions

The Limited Partnership Agreement provides that SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited shall act as General Partner and be entitled to distributions equal to amounts received by the Partnership from ECF LP and ECF B LP in respect of management profit share. Buring the year to 31 December 2018, €322,253 (2017; €204,242) was received by the Partnership from ECF LP and ECF B LP in relation to management profit share and €322,253 (2017; €204,242) was paid to the General Partner in relation to management profit share. SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of SLCP (Holdings) Limited and Standard Life Aberdeen plc. The registered addresses of SLCP (Holdings) Limited and Standard Life Aberdeen plc is 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2LL, United Kingdom.

The Manager of the Partnership receives a management fee, equal to the management profit share allocated to the General Partner, in relation to its activity as Manager of ECF LP and ECF B LP.

Certain members and employees of the Manager are Carried Interest Partners in the Partnership and are entitled to participate in the profits as disclosed in note 8.

At 31 December 2018, the Partnership owed €336 (2017: €336) to ECF LP and €374 (2017: €374) to ECF B LP in respect of capital contributions.

At 31 December 2018, €114 (2017: €114) was owed by the Carried Interest Partners in respect of capital contributions.

During the year to 31 December 2018, €6,804 (2017: €5,786) was paid by ECF LP and ECF B LP on behalf of the Partnership in respect of expenses. At 31 December 2018, the Partnership owed €8,936 (2017: €3,074) to ECF LP and €4,650 (2017: €3,707) to ECF B LP for expenses paid on its behalf.

At 31 December 2018, €19,694 (2017: €217) and €20,100 (2017: €3,201) was due from ECF LP and ECF B LP in respect of management profit share, respectively.

At 31 December 2018, the Partnership owed €39,794 (2017: €3,418) to the General Partner in respect of management profit share.

10. Commitments and contingencies

The Partnership has committed an aggregate of €710 (2017: €710) to ECF LP and ECF B LP as a camed interest partner.

There are no contingent assets or flabilities that require disclosure in the financial statements at the year end.

11. Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership's related undertakings. The Partnership has no subsidiaries, associates or other significant holdings and therefore has no disclosures in related undertakings.

12. Events after the reporting date

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to 19 June 2019. There are no significant events identified after the reporting date.

SL Capital European Co-investment B LP

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Table of Contents	Page
Manager, General Partner and Advisors	1
Report of the General Partner	2
Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities	4
Depositary Report	5
Independent Auditor's Report	6
Statement of Comprehensive Income	9
Statement of Financial Position	10
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners	11
Statement of Cash Flows	. 12
Notes to the Financial Statements	13
Annendix I	24

Important Note

The contents of this report do not constitute advice and no person should make any investment decisions in reliance on the contents of this

Manager, General Partner and Advisors

Registered Address

1 George Street

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

U.K.

Manager and Principal Place of Business SL Capital Partners LLP

1 George Street Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

General Partner

(and Founder Partner)

St. Capital ECF GP LP 1 George Street

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

U.K.

UK Legal Advisor

Goodwin Procter (UK) LLP

100 Cheepside London, EC2V 6DY

U.K.

US Tax Advisor

Ernst & Young LLP 25 Churchill Place London, E14 5EY

U.K.

Independent Auditor

KPMG LLP Sattire Court 20 Castle Terrace Edinburgh, EH1 2EG

U.K.

Administrator

IQ EQ Administration Services (UK) Ltd

(formerly: Augentius (UK) Lid)

Two London Bridge London, SE1 9RA

U.K.

Depositary

IQ EQ Depositary Company (UK) Limited

(formerly: Augentius Depositary Company Limited)

Two London Bridge London, SE1 9RA

U.K.

Report of the General Partner

The General Pariner, St. Capital ECF GP LP, presents the audited financial statements for St. Capital European Co-investment B LP ("the Fund") for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Structure of the Fund

The Fund is a Limited Partnership, established in Scotland, United Kingdom ("U.K."). The Fund held its final close on 20 December 2017 bringing the aggregate commitments to US\$35.5 million and Limited Partners to nineteen. The structure of the Fund is detailed further in note 1 to the financial statements.

Directors of the General Partner

There have been no changes to the Directors of the General Partner during the year. Please refer to the financial statements of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited for the names of the Directors.

Distributions

Distributions of US\$N# (2017: US\$1,731,934) were made during the year of which US\$N# (2017: US\$1,731,934) was temporary return of capital, which is recallable.

Events after the reporting date

The General Partner has identified no significant events after the reporting date.

Results, activities and future developments

The results for the year are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 9. A description of the principal activity of the Fund is provided in note 1 to the financial statements.

The Manager's Report for the Fund, which is issued separately, contains detailed analysis of each of the Fund's Investments, together with commentary on the economic climate and how this impacts the private equity market.

Disclosure of Information to auditor

At the date of this report, the General Partner confirms that:

- . As far as the General Pertner is aware, there is no relevant information of which the Fund's auditor is unaware; and
- The General Partner has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken as a General Partner in order to make it aware of any
 relevant audit information and to establish that the Fund's auditor is aware of that information.

Independent auditor

The General Partner has appointed KPMG LLP as auditor to the Fund.

Data protection

St. Capital Pariners LLP ("the Manager") has implemented measures that it believes are necessary in order to comply with the General Data Protection Regulation.

Report of the General Partner (continued)

fammellers.

Strategic report

The Fund is considered as "small" under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013 and is therefore example from preparing a strategic report.

Remuneration policy

In line with the Alternative Investment Fund Manager Directive ("the AIFMD"), the Fund's Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("the AIFM") has implemented a remuneration policy for its staff. Details in relation to the AIFM's remuneration policy are included in Appendix i and quantitative disclosures are available upon request.

Signed on behalf of SL Capital ECF GP LP

lan Harris

Director, St.CP (General Partner EC) Limited

2 May 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 require the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with Part 15 and Chapter 1 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Under that tew the General Partner has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law.

Under company law the General Pariner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund and of the profit or loss of the Fund for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;
- assess the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Fund or to case operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The General Partner is responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguerd the assets of the Fund and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Depositary Report

Pursuant to the requirements of the AiFMD, IQ EQ Depositary Company (UK) Limited ("IDCL") has been appointed by the Manager to provide the Fund with cash flow monitoring, ownership verification and compliance oversight services ("the Depositary Services").

IDCL's responsibility

IDCL's review and conclusion in respect of the Fund is based on iDCL's review of information and documentation supplied to IDCL by the Manager, or such other person(s) as this function is delegated to from time to time, in addition to such other publicly available resources as IDCL deems appropriate.

IDCL's Depositary Services and the conclusion reached pursuant to such services is limited to and does not extend beyond the scope of the requirements of a depositary under the AIFMD.

Compliance conclusion

IDCL confirms that during the year ended 31 December 2018, in the performance of its Depositary Services, IDCL detected no material reportable irregularities in respect of the Fund in relation to the AiFMD.

Reliance

The disclosure by IDCL of its findings pursuant to the Depositary Services in relation to the Fund has been provided at the request of the Manager and for information purposes only on a non-reliance basis and as such, such findings shall not be relied on by any other person.

Lisa Stewart

for and on behalf of IQ EQ Depositary Company (UK) Limited

2 May 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital European Co-investment B

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St. Capital European Co-investment B LP ("the Qualifying Partnership") for the year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Altributable to Partners and the Statement of Cash Flows and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Qualifying Partnership's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its profit for the year then ended:
- have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("IFR8a"); and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Qualifying Partnership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Other matter

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the General Pariner, such as the valuation of the unquoted investments and related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the Qualifying Partnership's future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the Qualifying Partnership's future prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknoweble factors or all possible future implications for a company and this is perticularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The General Partner has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Qualifying Partnership or to cease its operations, and they have concluded that the Qualifying Partnership's financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no meterial uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements ("the going concern period").

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the General Pertner's conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Qualifying Partnership's business model, including the impact of Brexil, and analysed how those risks might affect the Qualifying Partnership's financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Qualifying Partnership will continue in operation.

General Partner's report

The General Partner is responsible for the General Partner's report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover that report and we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital European Co-Investment B LP (continued)

General Partner's report (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the General Pertner's report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is meterially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

- · we have not identified material misstatements in that report;
- In our opinion the information given in the General Partner's report for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements;
- . In our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying parinerships we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- . the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- · certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by lew are not made; or
- · we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
- the General Partner was not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption, as applied to qualifying partnerships, from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

General Partner's responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 4, the General Periner is responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fixed or error; assessing the Qualifying Parinership's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, metters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to significate the Qualifying Parinership or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to freud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/euclitoraresponsibilities.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital European Co-investment B LP (continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Qualifying Partnership's partners, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Qualifying Partnership's partners those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Qualifying Partnership and its partners, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

M Norld

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Charlered Accountants
Saltire Court
20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh
EH1 2EG
2 May 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

	Notes	Year ended 31 December 2018 US\$	Year ended 31 December 2017 US\$
Income			•
Net unreelised movement on investments		2,761,232	2,062,488
Net unrealised foreign exchange movement on investments		(855,438)	1,107,713
Not realised foreign exchange gain on investments		•	25,674
Net foreign exchange gein on non-investments		23,057	7,431
Total net income		1,928,851	3,203,306
Expenses			
Organicational expenses		•	14,518
Administration and other expenses	4	(88,624)	(70,497)
Total operating expenses		(88,624)	(55,979)
Operating profit		1,840,227	3,147,327
Finance Costs			
Arrangement fee	7	•	(5,250)
Interest expenses	7	(16,524)	(8,572)
Total finance costs		(16,524)	(13,822)
Operating profit after finance costs		1,823,703	3,133,505
Management profit share	8	(185,967)	(112,393)
Increase in net assets attributable to Partners from operations		1,637,746	3,021,112

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations.

The Fund has no components of other comprehensive income in the current and comparative year.

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position

	Notes	At 31 December 2018 U8\$	At 31 December 2017 U8\$
Accets			
Non-current assets			
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	11	29,912,650	16,452,603
Current measts			
Trade and other receivables	5	5,790	424,765
Cash and cash equivalents		102,925	83,164
		108,715	507,929
Current ilabilities			
Trade and other payables	6	(56,616)	(462,372)
• •		(56,616)	(462,372)
Not current assets		52,099	45,657
Net assets attributable to Partners		29,964,749	16,498,160
Represented by:			
Partners' capital account		3,944	3,650
Partners' loan account		26,017,395	14,188,846
Partners' current account		3,943,410	2,305,684
Net assets attributable to Partners	• -	29,964,749	16,498,160

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Samuellus

The financial statements set out on pages 9 to 23 were approved by the General Partner on 2 May 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

lan Harris Director, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners

	Year ended 31 December 2018	Year ended 31 December 2017
Net assets attributable to Partners at the start of the year	U 3\$ 16,496,160	U8\$ 8,470,652
•	, ,	9,770,002
Partners' capital drawn	294	•
Partners' loan drawn	11,828,549	6,738,330
Temporary return of capital to Partners		(1,731,934)
Net drawn	11,828,843	6,006,396
increase in net assets attributable to Partners from operations	1,637,746	3,021,112
Net sesets attributable to Partners at the end of the year	29,964,749	16,498,160

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

	Notes	Year ended 31 December 2018 US\$	Year ended 31 December 2017 US\$
Cash flows from operating activities			
Operating profit		1,840,227	3,147,327
Interest paid ,		(16,524)	(8,672)
Arrangement fee paid		-	(5,250)
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables	6	418,975	(411,473)
(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables	6	(424,980)	432,986
Net unrealised movement on investments		(2,761,232)	(2,062,488)
Net unrealised toreign exchange movement on investments		855,438	(1,107,713)
Net realised foreign exchange gain on Investments		-	(25,674)
Purchase of investments		(11,567,388)	(5,311,937)
Sale of Investments		13,135	397,791
Net cash outflow from operating activities		(11,642,349)	(4,955,003)
Management profit share		(166,733)	(120,808)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Partners' capital drawn		294	•
Partners' loan drawn		11,828,549	6,738,330
Temporary return of capital to Partners		-	(1,731,934)
Net cash inflow from financing activities		11,828,843	5,006,396
Not increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		19,761	(69,415)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year		83,164	152,579
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		102,925	63,164

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Fund background

The Fund is a Limited Pertnership registered in Scotland, U.K. and was established on 24 August 2015. The Fund held its final close on 20 December 2017 with total commitments of US\$35.5 million from nineteen Limited Partners. The Limited Partners' capital contributions equal 0.01% of their total commitment. Commitments to Co-investments ("investments") can be drawn at any time and the Fund is required to draw down loan commitments from Limited Partners in order to cover these.

SL Capital ECF GP LP is the General Pariner and Founder Pariner of the Fund and has contributed \$394 to the Fund as a certific interest Partner. The Manager of the Fund is SL Capital Partners LLP, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ("the FCA") and is a U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission registered investment advisor based in Edinburgh, U.K. The Manager was authorised as an AIFM by the FCA on 22 July 2013. The FCA permitted the Manager to act as the AIFM to the Fund with effect from 22 July 2013. The Fund has no employees.

The Fund was formed for the purpose of investing in investments.

The Fund is established for a term of ten years from the final close date. The Investment period ends on 20 December 2021. The life of the Fund may be extended by up to three additional one year periods, and thereafter with the agreement of the General Partner and the Investors.

The structure of the Fund at 31 December 2018 was as follows:

	At
	31 December 2015
	U8\$
Commitments	35,500,356
Partners' capital drawn	3,944
Partners' toan drawn	29,053,329
Temporary return of capital to Partners	(3,035,934)
Funded	26,021,339
% of Commitments	73.30%

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities measured at Feir Value through Profit or Loss ("FVPL"), and in accordance with the Limited Partnership Agreement. The Fund is denominated in United States Dollar ("US\$"), international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSe") as adopted by the EU and the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying partnerships, have been applied in all aspects of the preparation of the financial statements.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant, are disclosed in note 3.

2.2 New and revised accounting standards / amendments effective for the current year

New and revised accounting standards that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jenuary 2018 and have been adopted by the Fund are listed below.

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments'

IFRS 9 'Financial instruments' replaces IAS 39 'Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and Introduces new requirements for the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, impairment and for hadge accounting. The nature and impact of IFRS 9 is outlined below:

(i) Recognition, classification and measurement:

IFRS 9 establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets; amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") and FVPL.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 New and revised accounting standards / amendments effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS & 'Financial Instruments' (continued)

Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Fund has assessed the classification of recognised financial instruments both at date of initial application and retrospectively; concluding that:

- All finencial assets already held at FVPL under iAS 39 continue to be measured at fair value through profit or loss;
- Investments in subsidiaries and associates continue to be measured at fair value in accordance with IFRS 10 and IAS 28;
- Financial assets previously classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39, that meet the new dust test criteria are now classified as financial assets at amortised cost; and
- Debt instruments held as part of a portfolio of assets managed and evaluated on the business model basis of fair value, previously held at fair value under IAS 39, continue to be measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial liabilities under IFRS 9 remains broadly similar to that under IAS 39. The Fund has no financial liabilities designated at FVPL so there is no impact from the adoption of IFRS 9 with regards to financial liabilities.

Whitst the classification, measurement and recognition requirements of IFRS 9 have been retrospectively applied, the Fund has opted, as permitted, not to restate comparatives; therefore, they continue to be presented in accordance with IAS 39.

Considering both the characteristics of financial instruments and the approach to their management, the adoption of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any revocation of designations, nor any new designations of financial assets or liabilities.

There have been no changes in the carrying amounts of financial instruments due to changes in measurement category. Financial assets previously measured at EVPL continue to be so. Those measured at amortised cost continue to be so. Further, the application of the expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model as applied to financial instruments held at amortised cost has not significantly changed their carrying value. The carrying values of amortised cost financial instruments under IAS 39 continue to approximate their fair values on the date of transition to IFRS 9.

(ii) Impairment:

Under IAS 39, the Fund was required to recognise an impairment loss on financial instruments held at amortised cost when objective evidence of impairment existed. Upon adoption of IFRS 9, impairment is assessed either on a forthcoming 12-month or lifetime basis and recognised initially and at subsequent reporting dates at the full amount of the ECL within that period. The Fund holds only receivables and contract assets at amortised cost with no significant financing component and therefore has chosen to apply the simplified approach to assessment of ECL, making a lifetime assessment of credit loss based on relevant, supportable information about the future.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has brought no material impact on the financial statements through the recognition, liming or measurement of impairment loss.

IFRS 15, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and Clarifications to IFRS 15 ("Clarifications")

IFRS 15 supersodes IAS 11 'Construction Contracts', IAS 18 'Revenue' and related interpretations. The core principle of the new standard is for entities to recognise revenue depicting the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Fund is entitled. This is applied using a five-step model.

Guidance on the recognition and presentation of interest and dividend income now falls within the scope of IFRS 9. A consequential amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' has clarified that only interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost can be presented within the revenue line item of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Fund's interest income from financial assets held at FVPI, continues to be separately identified from revenue as "interest income".

There has been no material impact following the adoption of IFRS 15 in either revenue recognised by the Fund nor in the timing or pattern of revenue recognision within portfolio companies held as financial assets at FVPL.

2.3 New accounting standards / amendments not yet effective

Standards amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Fund are listed below.

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Componsation

The IASB issued a narrow scope amendment to IFRS 9 in October 2017 which updates the solely payments of principal and interest test: borrowings that include a contractual term under which an early repayment results in a settlement discount will now be deemed to have cashitows of solely principal and interest and are consequently measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI rather than FVPL. This has been termed 'negative compensation' as in effect the lender is paying the borrower compensation for early settlement.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 New accounting standards / smendments not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to IPRS 9; Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (continued)

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This has been endorsed by the EU. The Fund will adopt the amendment when it becomes effective.

2.4 Going concern

The General Partner has made an assessment of the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Fund has the resources to continue in business for the foreseable future. Furthermore, the General Partner is not aware of any material uncertainties that may coal significant doubt upon the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.5 Financial period

The financial statements are prepared from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The comparatives are presented from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

2.6 Functional currency

The General Periner considers the US\$ as the Fund's functional and presentational currency as it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

Unrealised foreign currency exchange gains and losses on non-US\$ denominated investments arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and realised foreign exchange gains and issues on income and expenses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Non-US\$ denominated assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate at the Statement of Financial Position date. Non-US\$ income and expense transactions are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Exchange rates at 31 December 2018:

Exchange rates at 31 December 2017:

US\$1=

LIS\$1=

Euro

€0.8328

Starting

€0.8748 £0.7852

Euro Sterling

£0.7302

2.7 Income, expenses, gains and losses

All income and expenses, inclusive of realised gains and losses, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Net income, gains and josses of the Fund are allocated under the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement. Details are set out in note 2.16.

2.8 investment entity

The General Pertner has determined that the Fund is an investment entity as per IFRS 10, 'Consolidated Financial Statements'. Details are set out in note 3.2.

2.9 Financial essets at feir value through profit or loss

Financial assets have been designated upon initial recognition at FVPL. On the date of making a legal commitment to invest in an entity, such commitment is recorded and disclosed. When funds are drawn in respect of such commitment, the resulting investment is recognised in the financial statements.

Messurement

Financial assets at FVPL are initially recognised at felt value as detailed in note 3.1. Transaction costs are expensed and included within gains and losses on investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derecognition

Financial seasts are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from underlying instruments have expired or the entity has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of ownership.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an ineignificant risk of change in value. At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there were no cash equivalents.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less the appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

2.12 Trade and other pavables

Payables and accrued expenses are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.12 Bank overdraft

The bank overdraft is initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. The facility arrangement fee is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when incurred due to its immeterial nature.

The bank overdraft is shown as a current liability as the Fund has no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

2.14 Taxation

No provision has been made in the financial statements for taxation of the General Partner and the Limited Partners, All Partners are individually responsible for reporting their share of the Fund's income, gains and losses for taxation purposes.

2.15 Not assets attributable to Partners

The Fund's contributed capital consists of capital and loan contributions. Not assets attributable to Partners is classified as a financial liability, due to the Fund's finite life and contractual payment provisions to each of the Partners.

2.16 Distribution of Income proceeds and capital proceeds between Partners

The Fund's net income, gains and losses are allocated in accordance with the distribution provisions of the Limited Partnership Agreement.

Distributions are allocated pro rata in accordance with each Limited Partner's commitments until the Limited Partners have received distributions equalling the sum of:

- (a) Repayment of Invasiors' outstanding loans pro rate to their respective commitments; and
- (b) Preferred Return (as defined in the Limited Partnership Agreement) of 8% per annum, compounded annually on 31 December.

In general, subsequent distributions will be allocated to the Founder Partner until the Founder Partner has received aggregate distributions equalling 10% of cumulative not profits ("the catch up").

All remaining distributions in excess of the catch up amount, described above, will be allocated:

- (a) 10% to the Founder Partner; and
- (b) 90% to all Limited Partners in proportion to their commitments.

At 31 December 2018, no carried interest allocation had been made to the Founder Partner (2017: US\$NII).

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

There are key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and itabilities within the next financial year. The Fund based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Fund. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

3.1 Fair value of investments not quoted in an active market

The Investments of the Fund are valued by the General Partner with reference to the 'International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines' ("the Guidelines").

The General Partner reviews the valuations prepared by the managers of Co-investments and determines whether it is appropriate to apply such valuations to the Fund's Co-investments.

The General Partner may rely upon any valuations provided to it by the managers of the Co-investments and apply such valuations to the investments of the Fund, but shall not be bound by these. The managers' valuations are typically in line with the Guidelines. Where the General Partner does not consider it appropriate to adopt a manager's valuation, it will make its own estimate of fair value in line with the Guidelines. The unrealised and realised gains and losses on investments are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Notwithstanding this basis of valuation, the eventual realisation proceeds will inevitably differ from the valuation and those differences could be significant.

3.2 Investment entity status

The Fund was set up with an intention to have multiple investors and indirectly hold multiple investments. Ownership interests in the Fund are in the form of the Partner's share of capital in the Fund and are exposed to variable returns from changes in the fair value of the Fund's ret assets. The Fund has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity per IFRS 10, 'Consolidated Financial Statements' as the following conditions exist:

- (I) The Fund has obtained funds for the purpose of providing investors with investment management services;
- (ii) The Fund's business purpose, which was communicated directly to investors via the Limited Partnership Agreement, is providing investors with an overall rate of return from investments by means of both income and capital growth; and
- (iii) The performance of investments made is measured and evaluated on a fair value basis.

4. Administration and other expenses

Year ended	Year ended
31 December 2018	31 December 2017
US\$	U8\$ _.
56,077	39,063
24,138	22,960
7,491	7,242
918	1,212
88,624	70,497
At	At
31 December 2918	31 December 2017
us\$	U8\$
5,790	4,342
	420,423
6,790	424,765
	31 December 2018 US\$ 56,077 24,138 7,491 918 88,624 At 31 December 2918 US\$ 5,790

6. Trade and other payables

	At	At
	31 December 2018	31 December 2017
	US\$	U8\$
Legal and professional fee accruel	23,510	16,720
Due to General Partner	23,066	3,844
Audit fee accruel	7,206	7,467
Administration fee accrual	2,832	2,012
Due to Limited Partners	•	428,548
Other expenses accruate	•	1,927
Due to Parallel Funds		1,854
	56,618	462,372

7. Bank Overdreft

The Fund obtained an uncommitted, short term bank overdraft facility of US\$3.5 million from Societe Generale in July 2017. The bank overdraft facility can be drawn at any time and can be terminated by the Fund or the bank at any time by a written notice. Interest is paid monthly in arrears at a rate equal to the three month US\$ interbank offered rate plus an applicable mergin of up to 1.35% per annum, calculated on the daily overdrawn balance. Such amount is shown as "interest expenses" in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. An arrangement fee is paid at a rate of 0.15% of the overdraft facility limit and such amount is shown as "Arrangement fee" in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

At 31 December 2018, US\$Nii has been drawn from the bank overdraft facility and therefore the undrawn bank overdraft facility available for future operating activities and to settle capital commitments was US\$3.5 million. There are no restrictions on the use of this facility.

There have been no defaults or breaches related to the facility during the year ended 31 December 2018.

8. Management profit share

The Fund allocates management profit share to the General Partner in respect of each Accounting Period, calculated at 0.2% per quarter of the net asset value at each quarter end. Further detail on the calculation is available in clause 12 of the Limited Partnership Agreement.

The management profit share in any Accounting Period shall be reduced by the whole of any Transaction Fees, investment Related Fees, Abort Fees and Other Fees that have been earned and retained by the General Partner, the Manager or any Associate of either of them during the previous Accounting Period pursuant to clause 8.3 of the Limited Partnership Agreement, up to a maximum amount that shall be no greater than the gross amount of the management profit share for the current period. Where the management profit share is reduced to zero in any Accounting Period any Transaction Fees, investment Related Fees, Abort Fees and Other Fees not applied in reduction of the management profit share in such Accounting Period shall be carried forward and shall reduce the management profit share in the next Accounting Period.

The management profit share ranks as the first charge on net income and realised gains in any Accounting Period and is paid in full by the Fund whether or not there are sufficient net income and realised gains to cover the amount. Such sums are not recoverable, except against future net income and realised gains of the Fund.

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the total amount of management profit share since inception exceeded the total amount of net income and net realised gains on investments since inception and therefore US\$185,957 and US\$112,393 respectively were paid in advance.

9. Related party disclosure

The Limited Pertnership Agreement provides that St. Capital ECF GP LP shall act as General Partner and is entitled to a management profit share as described in note 8. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the General Partner was allocated management profit share of US\$186,957 (2017; US\$112,393). The General Partner of St. Capital ECF GP LP is St.CP (General Partner EC) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of St.CP (Holdings) Limited, which is a subsidiary of the ultimate parent, Standard Life Aberdeen plo. The registered address of St.CP (Holdings) Limited and Standard Life Aberdeen plc is 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2LL, United Kingdom.

9. Related party disclosure (continued)

The Manager of the Fund receives a management fee, equal to the management profit share allocated to the General Partner, in relation to its activity as Manager of the Fund.

The Fund has invested US\$2,256,560 to purchase ordinary shares in ASI Terra Holdco Limited, a related entity sharing the same Manager as the Fund, The total number of shares purchased in ASI Terra Holdco Limited was 2,000,000. There were no distributions received during the year.

At 31 December 2018, US\$394 (2017: US\$100) was due from the General Partner in relation to its capital contribution following the final close.

At 31 December 2018, US\$23,068 (2017: US\$3,844) was due to the General Partner in respect of management profit share.

At 31 December 2018, US\$5,396 (2017: US\$4,342) was due from the General Partner in respect of expenses paid on its behalf.

At 31 December 2018, US\$NII (2017: US\$1,854) was due to SL Capital European Co-investment LP for expenses paid on its behalf. This is an entity which shares the common General Pariner with the Fund.

At 31 December 2018, US\$NII (2017: US\$407,804) and US\$NII (2017: US\$12,529) was due from SL Capital European Co-Investment LP due to the final close and expenses paid on its behalf respectively.

10. Financiai risk management

The overall strategy for the management of investment risk is driven by the investment policy as set out in the Limited Partnership Agreement. This is reviewed periodically by the Manager and Advisory Committee. Investments are selected by the Manager to achieve the investment objective of generating attractive returns, subject to prudent diversification. As a matter of policy there are no pre-set sector allocations, however, risk is agreed by investing across a range of countries and industrial sectors. The Fund's financial seeds are predominantly unsecured investments in unquoted compenies, in which the maximum risk is considered to be the amount committed.

The Fund's activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of financial risks to which the Fund is exposed are market risk (including price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The risk management policies employed by the Fund are detailed below:

10.1 Market rick

a) Price risk

The Fund is at risk of the economic cycle impacting the quoted markets and hence potentially the pricing of investment deals, the valuation of underlying investments and the price and timing of exits.

The valuation methodology employed by the managers of co-investments may include the application of ratios derived from lieted companies with similar characteristics. If any investments become quoted, they will be valued at the appropriate listed price, subject to any discount for marketability restrictions. Therefore, the value of the Fund's portfolio may be indirectly affected by price movements on listed exchanges.

Price risk is minimised by the Manager constructing a diversified portfolio of Co-investments. At 31 December 2018, there were 13 Co-investments. More detail on the sector and geographic analysis is provided in the Manager's Report, which is issued separately.

A 10% increase in the 31 December 2018 valuation of the Fund's investments would have increased not assets attributable to Partners by US\$2,991,265 (2017: US\$1,845,260); a 10% change in the opposite direction would have decreased not assets attributable to Partners by an equivalent amount.

b) Currency risk

The Fund makes Co-investments in currencies other than US\$ and accordingly a proportion of its net assets are in currencies other than US\$. As a result, the Fund's Statement of Financial Position is sensitive to movements in foreign exchange rates. The Fund has not hedged its foreign currency exposure, however, any cash received in a currency other than US\$ is converted into US\$ to minimise the exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates.

10. Financial risk management (continued)

10.1 Market risk (continued)

b) Currency risk (continued)

The tables below set out the Fund's exposure to foreign currency at the reporting date:

		31 December 2018		31 December 2017
	Local	US\$	Local	US\$
	Currency	Equivalent	Currency	Equivalent
Euro	15,925,050	18,204,717	6,758,675	8,115,819
Sterling	4,795,890	6,108,044	3,083,330	4,170,973
U.S. Dollar	5,651,988	5,651,988	4,211,368	4,211,368
	_	29,964,749	_	16,488,160
Outstanding commitments	_		_	
		31 December 2018		31 December 2017
	Local	US\$	Local	U8\$
	Currency	Equivalent	Currency	Equivalent
Sterling	59,003	75,144	48,633	65,788
Euro	36,589	41,827		
	_	116,971	_	65,768

If the value of the US\$ strengthened by 10% in relation to all currencies, net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased by US\$2,218,251 (2017; US\$1,116,981), a 10% change in the opposite direction would have resulted in an increase of US\$2,701,418 (2017; US\$1,366,199). These calculations are based on the net assets at the respective Statement of Financial Position dates and are not necessarily representative of the period as a whole.

The Fund has no significant exposure to currency risk on monetary items.

c) interest rate risk

The Fund's main interest rate risk arises from short-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate rate

The Fund manages its cash flow interest rate risk by actively monitoring the interest expenses from the bank overdraft. The Fund has no set interest rate level at which to cancel the overdraft, however the interest rate is actively monitored and any overdraft balance can be repaid if it is deemed appropriate to do so. The General Pertner does not believe that the impact of interest rate risk to be significant to the Fund.

10.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the exposure to loss arising from the failure of a counterparty to deliver securities or cash for acquisitions or disposals of investments or to repay deposits.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, in the event that counterparties fall to perform their obligations as at the year end (in relation to each class of recognised financial assets), is the carrying amount of those assets in the Statement of Financial Position. At the reporting date, the Fund's financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to the following:

	At	At
	31 December 2018	31 December 2017
	U 8 \$	US\$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	29,912,650	16,452,603
Trade and other receivables	5,790	424,766
Cesh and cash equivalents	102,925	83,164
	30,021,365	16,960,532

The Fund places cash with authorised deposit takers and, therefore, is potentially at risk from the failure of any such institution. At 31 December 2018, all of the Fund's cash was held by Societe Generale which was rated "A" by Standard & Poor's at the date of the Report of the General Partner.

At 31 December 2018, the assets held by the Fund are not past due or impaired (2017: US\$NII).

10. Financial risk management (continued)

10.3 Liquidity risk

The Fund's investments are in unquoted investments which are not traded in a regulated public market and are generally litiquid. As a result, the Fund may not be able to quickly liquidate these portfolio investments at an amount equal to their fair value, in order to meet its liquidity requirements. The Manager mitigates this risk by regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure sufficient cash is held to meet liabilities as they fall due.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Fund generated an operating profit after finance costs of US\$1,823,703 (2017: US\$3,133,505) and cash resources at the end of the year amounted to US\$102,925 (2017: US\$83,164). The flabilities of the Fund (excluding not assets attributable to Partners) are due on demand. In addition, the Fund had available to it undrawn commitments of US\$9,479,085 (2017: US\$21,307,604) from its Limited Partners, which are also due on demand.

The tables below analyse the Fund's financial fieblities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

At 31 December 2018					
		Less than	Between	More than	
	On demand	1 year	1 and 3 years	3 years	Total
	U3\$	U 8\$	US\$	U8\$	U8\$
Liabilities					
Trade and other payables	-	56,616	•	-	56,616
Not assets					
attributable to Partners	-	-	•	29,964,749	29,964,749
Total liabilities	*	56,616	-	29,964,749	30,021,346
Total unfunded commitments					
to investments	116,971	 :		· •	116,971
At 31 December 2017					
		Loca than	Between	More than	
	On demand	1 year	1 and 3 years	3 years	Total
	U 8\$	U 8\$	U S \$	U 3 \$	U8 \$
Lisbilities					
Trade and other payables	428,548	33,824	-	-	462,372
Not assets					
attributable to Partners	•	-	•	16,496,160	16,498,160
Total Habilities	428,548	23,824	-	16,488,160	16,960,532
Total unfunded commitments					
to investments	65,788	•	•		65,788

10.4 Capital risk management

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to Pariners. The Fund's objective when managing the capital is to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for Pariners and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Pariner may call unfunded commitments from the Limited Pariners or distribute funds to the Limited Pariners.

The General Partner monitors capital on the basis of the value of the net assets attributable to Partners.

11. Fair value measurement

IFRS 7 requires a three-level hierarchy disclosure for categorising financial assets and flabilities carried at fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy classifies financial assets and flabilities according to the source of inputs remixed according to availability of observable market prices used in measuring fair value as follows:

- Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
- Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety should be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The categorisation of a Co-investment within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of that investment. All of the Fund's investments have been classified within Level 3 as they have unobservable inputs and trade infrequently or not at all.

The determination of what constitutes "observable" requires algorificant judgement by the General Pariner. The General Pariner considers observable data to be market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by multiple, independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund's investments measured at fair value:

At 31 December 2018

	Level 1 US\$	Level 2 US\$	Level 3 UB\$	Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	•	•	29.912,650	29,812,650
At 31 December 2017				
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Tota
	U8\$	usş	US\$	US
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	•	•	16,452,603	16,452,603

There were no transfers between levels during the current and comparative year.

Determining the fair value of the Fund's investments requires judgement and considers factors specific to the investments. The valuation policies applied by the General Partner are detailed in note 3.1.

11. Fair value measurement (continued)

The changes in investments measured at fair value for which the Fund has used Level 3 inputs to determine fair value are as follows:

	31 December 2018	31 December 2017
	U8\$	U8\$
Belance at the start of the year	16,452,603	8,342,582
Purchases	11,567,388	5,311,937
Sales	(13,135)	(397,791)
Realised and unrealised losses	1,905,794	3,195,875
Balance at the end of the year	29,912,650	16,462,663
Unrealised movement included in profit or loss related to investments still held at the reporting date:		
 Net unrealised movement on investments (excluding transaction costs) 	2,813,030	2,078,707
- Net unrealised foreign exchange movement on investments	(855,438)	1,107,713
	1,857,592	3,186,420

12. Events after the reporting date

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to 2 May 2019. There are no significant events identified after the reporting date.

Appendix I

Alternative investment Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD) Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure Alf Annual Report and Accounts SL Capital European Co-investment B LP

Remuneration Policy

The Standard Life Aberdeen pic Remuneration Policy applies with effect from 1 January 2018. The purpose of the Standard Life Aberdeen pic Remuneration Policy (the "Policy") is to document clearly the remuneration policies, practices and procedures of Standard Life Aberdeen. It has been approved by the Standard Life Aberdeen pic Remuneration Committee and is subject to the Remuneration Committee's ennual review. The Policy applies to employees of the Standard Life Aberdeen group of compenies ("SLA").

The AIFM, Standard Life Capital Partners LLP is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Standard Life Aberdeen pic.

The Remuneration Committee of Standard Life Aberdeen pic adopted an AIFM Remuneration Policy to ensure that the requirements of the Atternative investment Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD) are fully adhered to by the group. This policy applies to St. Capital Pariners LLP and the Alternative investment Funds (AIFa) it manages (St. Capital European Co-Investment B LP). This policy is evaluate on request.

Remuneration Principles

SLA applies Group wide principles for remuneration policies, procedures and practices ensuring that remuneration design and the basis for awards will be clear, transparent and fair, in line with business strategy, objectives, culture, values and long term interests of SLA. Remuneration policies, procedures and practices should be consistent with and promote good conduct which includes sound and effective risk management and not encourage risk taking that exceeds the level of tolerated risk of SLA. Total variable remuneration will be funded through pre-agreed distribution metrics. Where SLA's financial performance is autodused or negative, total variable remuneration should generally be contracted, taking into account both current remuneration and reductions in pay-outs of amounts previously granted and having regard for SLA's long term economic visibility.

In addition to applying the SLA wide principles above, Aberdeen Standard investments ("ASI") applies a number of additional principles including the following, when determining remuneration for employees:

- a) Remuneration should be competitive and reflect both financial, non-financial and personal performance;
- b) Our remuneration design will align the interests of employees, shareholders and importantly our clienta/oustomers;
- c) Our remuneration structure will reward delivery of results over appropriate time horizons and will include deferred variable compensation at an appropriate level for the employee's role;
- d) We will provide an appropriate level of fixed remuneration to balance risk and reward.

Governance and Regulatory Compliance

The Remuneration Committee is made up of independent non-executive directors and makes recommendations to the Board of Standard Life Aberdeen plo (the "Board") to assist it with its remuneration releised duties. The Chief People Officer of Standard Life Aberdeen is responsible for ensuring the implementation of the Policy in consultation with the Remuneration Committee as well as other members of the Executive Committee ("Executive Body") (as defined by the Board), if appropriate.

Financial and non-financial criteria

Variable remuneration is based on a rounded seasesment of Group, Divisional and Individual performance. When assessing Individual performance, financial as wall as non-financial criteria are taken into account. Individual performance is based on the individual's appraisal, which includes an employee's compliance with controls and applicable company standards including the Group's Code of Ethics, including Treating Customers Fairly and Conduct Risk.

Conflicts of interest

The Conflicts of Interest Policy is designed to avoid conflicts of interest between SLA and its clients. This Policy prohibits any employee from being involved in decisions on their own remuneration. Furthermore, all employees are required to adhere to SLA's Global Code of Conduct, which encompasses conflicts of interest.

The Policy should, at all times, adhere to local legislation, regulations or other provisions. In circumstances or in jurisdictions where there is any conflict between the Policy and local legislation, regulations or other provisions, then the latter will prevail.

Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure AIF Annual Report and Accounts (continued)

Remuneration Framework

Employee remuneration is composed principally of fixed and variable elements of reward as follows:

- a) Fixed reward (fixed remuneration: salary (and cash allowances, if appropriate); and Benefits (including pension),
- b) Variable reward (bonus, a proportion of which may be subject to retention or deferred depending on role and regulatory requirements) and senior employees may also be awarded a long-term incentive award).

Appropriate ratios of fixed: variable remuneration will be set to as to ensure that:

- a) Fixed and variable components of total remuneration are appropriately balanced and
- b) The fixed component is a sufficiently high proportion of total remuneration to allow Standard Life Aberdeen to operate a fully tiexible policy on variable remuneration components, including paying no variable remuneration component.

Fixed Remuneration

Base salary provides a core reward for undertaking the role, where appropriate, and depending on the role, geographical or business market variances or other indicators, additional fixed cash allowances may make up a portion of fixed remuneration.

Benefits

Benefits are made up of: core benefits, which are provided to all employees; and extra voluntary benefits that may be chosen by certain employees and which may require contribution through salary sacrifice or other arrangements. Extra voluntary benefits are designed to support the health and wellbeing of employees through enabling individual selection based on lifestyle choices. Standard Life Aberdeen will ensure that the core and voluntary employee benefits policies are in line with relevant market practice, its views on managing its business risk objectives, culture and values and long-term interests and local requirements.

Pension

Standard Life Aberdeen's pension policies (which consist of defined contribution plans and legacy defined benefit plans) are in line with legislative requirements, governance structures and market practice, and reflect Standard Life Aberdeen's long-term views on risk and financial volatility, its business objectives, culture and values and long-term interests and local requirements. In certain circumstances, SLA may offer a cash allowance in tieu of any pension arrangement.

Annuel Performance Bonus Awards

Employees who have been employed during a performance year (1 January to 31 December) may be eligible to be considered for an annual bonus in respect of that year. Eligibility criteria for an annual bonus are set out in the rules of the relevant bonus plan and/or contract of employment, as appropriate. The bonus plan in place is designed to reward performance in line with the business strategy, objectives, culture and values, long term interests and risk appetits of SLA. All Executive Directors are awarded bonuses under a SLA bonus plan as detailed in the Directors' Remuneration Report.

Other verieble Pay Plans

Selected employees may perticipate in other variable pay plans, for example, performance fee share arrangements, where it is appropriate for their role or business unit. These plans operate under the overarching remuneration principles that apply across the group and, where appropriate, are also subject to specific principles governing incentives and are compliant with the requirements of any applicable regulatory standards.

Clawback/Makus

A clawbook/make principle applies to the variable pay plan. This enables the Remuneration Committee to seek to recoup the deferred amount of any unvested variable pay, in the exceptional event of misetalement or misetaling representation of performance; a significant failure of risk management and control; or serious miseonduct by an individual.

Guaranteed Variable Remuneration

Guaranteed variable remuneration is exceptional, coours only in the context of hiring new staff and is limited to the first year of service.

Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure AIF Annual Report and Accounts (continued)

AIFMD Identified Staff

Staff considered AIFMD Identified Staff are those categories of staff whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profiles of the AIFM or the AIFM that the AIFM manages.

AJFMD identified staff will include; Senior Management; Risk takers, Staff engaged in control functions; and any employees receiving total remuneration that takes them into the same remuneration bracket as senior management and risk takers, and whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profiles of the Company or the Funds that the Company manages.

Control Functions

SLA adheres to the principles and guidelines of regulations that apply to SLA in defining control functions. Control functions include, but are not necessarily limited to, Risk, Compliance, Internal Audit and Actuariel functions or roles.

SLA will ensure that, as appropriate, senior employees engaged in a control function:

- a) Are independent from the Business Units they overses;
- b) Have appropriate authority, and
- c) Their remuneration is directly overseen by the Remuneration Committee.

This is achieved by the main control functions being outside the business, and a material proportion of their annual incentives being subject to a scorecard based on the performance of the control function. Performance against the scorecard is reviewed by the relevant independent governing committee (either Risk & Capital Committee, or Audit Committee). SLA's People Function reviews the remuneration of employees in control functions and benchmarks with the external market to ensure that it is market competitive and adequately reflects employees' skills and experience.

Personal Hedging

AIFMD Identified Staff are not permitted to undermine the risk alignment effects of the AIFMD Remuneration Code. Personal hedging strategies; or remuneration-related insurance; or liability-related insurance is not permissible on remuneration.

Employee Remuneration Disclosure

The table below provides an overview of the following:

- Count of 'identified Staff' assigned to St. Capital Partners LLP and to European Co-investment B LP. St. Capital Partners LLP numbers
 represent the actual count of 'identified Staff' against this AIFM while AIF level numbers are calculated based on the AIFs AUM
 proportion of St. Capital Partners LLP AUM.
- Aggregate total remuneration paid by St. Capital Partners Lt.P to its 'Identified Staff'. This is split by Fixed and Variable Remuneration and also by Total Remuneration of Senior Management and Total Remuneration of Other 'Identified Staff'.
- Aggregate total remuneration peld by the fund (European Co-investment B LP) to its "identified Staff. These AIF level numbers are celoulated as AIF's AUM proportion of St. Capital Partners LLP AUM.

The "Identified Staff" of St. Capital Partners LLP are those employees who could have a material impact on the risk profile of St. Capital Partners LLP or the AIF's it manages (including European Co-investment B LP). This broadly includes senior management, risk takers and control functions. For the purposes of this disclosure, "identified Staff" includes employees of entities to which activities have been delegated.

Amounts shown reflect payments made during the financial reporting period in question. The reporting period runs from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 inclusive.

Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure AIF Annual Report and Accounts (continued)

Employee Remuneration Disclosure (continued)

	except cont	SL Cepted Pastner's LLC A EM 1010 Remail Cretion	Comvertion B.P.	
		\$ 0.00	\$1900	
SI. Capital European Co-investment B LP Reporting period: 01/01/18 31/12/18	83	956	21	
Senior Management	16	173	4	
Other 'identified Staff'	67	783	17	
Total Fixed remuneration		392	9	
Variable remuneration		564	12	
Carried Interest		NIL	NIL	

Registration number: SL017014

SL Capital European Co-investment LP

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

Table of Contents	Page
Manager, General Partner and Advisors	1
Report of the General Partner	2
Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities	4
Depositary Report	5
Independent Auditor's Report	6
Statement of Comprehensive Income	9
Statement of Financial Position	10
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners	11
Statement of Cash Flows	12
Notes to the Financial Statements	13
Appendix i	24

Important Note

The contents of this report do not constitute advice and no person should make any investment decisions in reliance on the contents of this report.

Manager, General Partner and Advisors

Registered Address

1 George Street

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

U.K.

Manager and Principal

Place of Business

SL Capital Partners LLP

1 George Street Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

U.K.

General Partner

(and Founder Partner)

SL Capital ECF GP LP 1 George Street

Edinburgh, EH2 2LL

U.K.

UK Legal Advisor

Goodwin Procter (UK) LLP

100 Cheapside London, EC2V 6DY

U.K.

Independent Auditor

KPMG LLP Sattire Court 20 Castle Terrace Edinburgh, EH1 2EG

U.K.

Administrator

IQ EQ Administration Services (UK) Ltd

(formerly: Augentius (UK) Ltd)

Two London Bridge London, SE1 9RA

U.K.

Depositary

IQ EQ Depositary Company (UK) Limited

(formerly: Augentius Depositary Company Limited)

Two London Bridge London, SE1 9RA

U.K.

Report of the General Partner

The General Partner, SL Capital ECF GP LP, presents the audited financial statements for SL Capital European Co-investment LP ("the Fund") for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Structure of the Fund

The Fund is a Limited Partnership, established in Scotland, United Kingdom ("U.K."). The Fund held its final close on 20 December 2017 bringing the aggregate commitments to €30.2 million and Limited Partners to four. The structure of the Fund is detailed further in note 1 to the financial statements.

Directors of the General Partner

There have been no changes to the Directors of the General Partner during the year. Please refer to the financial statements of SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited for the names of the Directors.

Distributions

Distributions of €Nil (2017: €1,066,190) were made during the year of which €Nil (2017: €1,066,190) was temporary return of capital, which is recallable.

Events after the reporting date

The General Partner has identified no significant events after the reporting date.

Results, activities and future developments

The results for the year are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 9. A description of the principal activity of the Fund is provided in note 1 to the financial statements.

The Manager's Report for the Fund, which is issued separately, contains detailed analysis of each of the Fund's Investments, together with commentary on the economic climate and how this impacts the private equity market.

Disclosure of information to auditor

At the date of this report, the General Partner confirms that:

- As far as the General Partner is aware, there is no relevant information of which the Fund's auditor is unaware; and
- The General Partner has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken as a General Partner in order to make it aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Fund's auditor is aware of that information.

Independent auditor

The General Partner has appointed KPMG LLP as auditor to the Fund.

Data protection

SL Capital Partners LLP ("the Manager") has implemented measures that it believes are necessary in order to comply with the General Data Protection Regulation.

Report of the General Partner (continued)

Strategic report

The Fund is considered as "small" under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013 and is therefore exempt from preparing a strategic report.

Remuneration policy

In tine with the Alternative Investment Fund Manager Directive ("the AlFMD"), the Fund's Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("the AlFM") has implemented a remuneration policy for its staff. Details in relation to the AlFM's remuneration policy are included in Appendix I and quantitative disclosures are available upon request.

Signed on behalf of the General Partner

Januallung

Ian Harris

Director, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

9 May 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Report of the General Partner and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 require the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with Part 15 and Chapter 1 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Under that law the General Partner has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law.

Under company law the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund and of the profit or loss of the Fund for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

- · select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- · make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;
- assess the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic
 alternative but to do so.

The General Partner is responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Fund and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Depositary Report

Pursuant to the requirements of the AIFMD, IQ EQ Depositary Company (UK) Limited ("IDCL") has been appointed by the Manager to provide the Fund with cash flow monitoring, ownership verification and compliance oversight services ("the Depositary Services").

IDCL's responsibility

IDCL's review and conclusion in respect of the Fund is based on IDCL's review of information and documentation supplied to IDCL by the Manager, or such other person(s) as this function is delegated to from time to time, in addition to such other publicly available resources as IDCL deems appropriate.

IDCL's Depositary Services and the conclusion reached pursuant to such services is limited to and does not extend beyond the scope of the requirements of a depositary under the AIFMD.

Compliance conclusion

Lewart

IDCL confirms that during the year ended 31 December 2018, in the performance of its Depositary Services, IDCL detected no material reportable irregularities in respect of the Fund in relation to the AIFMD.

Reliance

The disclosure by IDCL of its findings pursuant to the Depositary Services in relation to the Fund has been provided at the request of the Manager and for information purposes only on a non-reliance basis and as such, such findings shall not be relied on by any other person.

Lisa Stewart

for and on behalf of IQ EQ Depositary Company (UK) Limited

9 May 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital European Co-investment LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SL Capital European Co-investment LP ("the Qualifying Partnership") for the year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners and the Statement of Cash Flows and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Qualifying Partnership's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its profit for the year then ended:
- have been properly prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("IFRSs"); and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Qualifying Partnership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Other matter

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the General Partner, such as the valuation of the unquoted investments and related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the Qualifying Partnership's future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the Qualifying Partnership's future prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The General Partner has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Qualifying Partnership or to cease its operations, and they have concluded that the Qualifying Partnership's financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements ("the going concern period").

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the General Partner's conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Qualifying Partnership's business model, including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the Qualifying Partnership's financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Qualifying Partnership will continue in operation.

General Partner's report

The General Partner is responsible for the General Partner's report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover that report and we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital European Co-investment LP (continued)

General Partner's report (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the General Partner's report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

- we have not identified material misstatements in that report;
- in our opinion the information given in the General Partner's report for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements; and
- in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us: or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- · certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- . we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
- the General Partner was not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption, as applied to qualifying partnerships, from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

General Partner's responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 4, the General Partner is responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Qualifying Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Qualifying Partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Partners of SL Capital European Co-investment LP (continued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Qualifying Partnership's partners, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Qualifying Partnership's partners those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Qualifying Partnership and its partners, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor)

Au Moreld

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants Saltire Court 20 Castle Terrace Edinburgh EH1 2EG 9 May 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Income	Notes	Year ended 31 December 2018 €	Year ended 31 December 2017 €
Net unrealised movement on Investments		3,660,610	1,651,386
Net unrealised foreign exchange movement on Investments		218,956	(424,043)
Net foreign exchange gain / (loss) on non-Investments		2,443	(7,273)
Total net income		3,882,009	1,220,070
Expenses			
Organisational expenses		(2,189)	(52,357)
Administration and other expenses	4	(70,099)	(67,678)
Total operating expenses		(72,288)	(120,035)
Operating profit		3,809,721	1,100,035
Finance Costs			
Arrangement fee	7	-	(3,000)
Interest expenses	7	(4,771)	(2,682)
Total finance costs		(4,771)	(5,682)
Operating profit after finance costs		3,804,950	1,094,353
Management profit share	8	(163,883)	(103,794)
Increase in net assets attributable to Partners from operations		3,641,067	990,559

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations.

The Fund has no components of other comprehensive income in the current and comparative year.

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position

		At	At
		31 December 2018	31 December 2017
	Notes	€	€
Assets			
Non-current assets			
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	11	27,156,802	12,727,644
Current assets			
Trade and other receivables	5	9,272	677,152
Cash and cash equivalents		201,679	78,718
		210,951	755,870
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	6	(30,595)	(695,669)
		(30,595)	(695,669)
Net current assets		180,356	60,201
Net assets attributable to Partners		27,337,158	12,787,845
Represented by:			
Partners' capital account		3,356	3,120
Partners' loan account		22,839,989	11,931,979
Partners' current account		4,493,813	852,746
Net assets attributable to Partners		27,337,158	12,787,845

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements set out on pages 9 to 23 were approved by the General Partner on 9 May 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

lan Harris

Director, SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited

Januallung.

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners

	Year ended 31 December 2018 €	Year ended 31 December 2017 €
Net assets attributable to Partners at the start of the year	12,787,845	4,986,287
Partners' capital drawn	236	1,020
Partners' loan drawn	10,908,010	7,876,169
Temporary return of capital to Partners		(1,066,190)
Net drawn	10,908,246	6,810,999
Increase in net assets attributable to Partners from operations	3,641,067	990,559
Net assets attributable to Partners at the end of the year	27,337,158	12,787,845

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

	Notes	Year ended 31 December 2018 €	Year ended 31 December 2017 €
Cash flows from operating activities	NOUS	•	•
Operating profit		3,809,721	1,100,035
Interest paid		(4,771)	(2,682)
Arrangement fee paid		-	(3,000)
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables	5	667,880	(676,188)
(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables	6	(684,551)	673,245
Net unrealised movement on Investments		(3,660,610)	(1,651,386)
Net unrealised foreign exchange movement on Investments		(218,956)	424,043
Purchase of Investments		(10,560,311)	(6,635,148)
Sale of Investments		10,719	-
Net cash outflow from operating activities		(10,640,879)	(6,771,081)
Management profit share		(144,406)	(92,408)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Partners' capital drawn		236	850
Partners' loan drawn		10,908,010	7,829,914
Temporary return of capital to Partners			(1,019,765)
Net cash inflow from financing activities		10,908,246	6,810,999
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		122,961	(52,490)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year		78,718	131,208
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		201,679	78,718

The notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Fund background

The Fund is a Limited Partnership registered in Scotland, U.K. and was established on 19 June 2014. The Fund held its final close on 20 December 2017 with total commitments of €30.2 million from four Limited Partners. The Limited Partners' capital contributions equal 0.01% of their total commitment. Commitments to Co-investments ("Investments") can be agreed at any time and the Fund is required to draw down loan commitments from Limited Partners in order to cover these.

SL Capital ECF GP LP is the General Partner and Founder Partner of the Fund and has contributed €336 to the Fund as a carried interest Partner. The Manager of the Fund is SL Capital Partners LLP, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ("the FCA") and is a U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission registered investment advisor based in Edinburgh, U.K. The Manager was authorised as an AIFM by the FCA on 22 July 2013. The FCA permitted the Manager to act as the AIFM to the Fund with effect from 22 July 2013. The Fund has no employees.

The Fund was formed for the purpose of investing in Investments.

The Fund is established for a term of ten years from the final close date. The investment period ends on 20 December 2021. The life of the Fund may be extended by up to three additional one year periods, and thereafter with the agreement of the General Partner and the investors

The structure of the Fund at 31 December 2018 was as follows:

	At 31 December 2018
	€
Commitments	30,202,836
Partners' capital drawn	3,356
Partners' loan drawn	24,455,180
Temporary return of capital to Partners	(1,615,191)
Funded	22,843,345
% of Commitments	75.63%

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss ("FVPL"), and in accordance with the Limited Partnership Agreement. The Fund is denominated in Euro. International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as adopted by the EU and the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying partnerships, have been applied in all aspects of the preparation of the financial statements.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant, are disclosed in note 3.

2.2 New and revised accounting standards / amendments effective for the current year

New and revised accounting standards that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and have been adopted by the Fund are listed below.

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments'

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' replaces IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and introduces new requirements for the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, impairment and for hedge accounting. The nature and impact of IFRS 9 is outlined below:

(i) Recognition, classification and measurement:

IFRS 9 establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") and FVPL.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 New and revised accounting standards / amendments effective for the current year (continued)

IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments' (continued)

Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Fund has assessed the classification of recognised financial instruments both at date of initial application and retrospectively; concluding that:

- All financial assets already held at FVPL under IAS 39 continue to be measured at fair value through profit or loss;
- Investments in subsidiaries and associates continue to be measured at fair value in accordance with IFRS 10 and IAS 28;
- Financial assets previously classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39, that meet the new dual test criteria are now classified as financial assets at amortised cost; and
- Debt instruments held as part of a portfolio of assets managed and evaluated on the business model basis of fair value, previously held at fair value under IAS 39, continue to be measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial liabilities under IFRS 9 remains broadly similar to that under IAS 39. The Fund has no financial liabilities designated at FVPL so there is no impact from the adoption of IFRS 9 with regards to financial liabilities.

Whilst the classification, measurement and recognition requirements of IFRS 9 have been retrospectively applied, the Fund has opted, as permitted, not to restate comparatives; therefore, they continue to be presented in accordance with IAS 39.

Considering both the characteristics of financial instruments and the approach to their management, the adoption of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any revocation of designations, nor any new designations of financial assets or liabilities.

There have been no changes in the carrying amounts of financial instruments due to changes in measurement category. Financial assets previously measured at FVPL continue to be so. Those measured at amortised cost continue to be so. Further, the application of the expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model as applied to financial instruments held at amortised cost has not significantly changed their carrying value. The carrying values of amortised cost financial instruments under IAS 39 continue to approximate their fair values on the date of transition to IFRS 9.

(ii) Impairment:

Under IAS 39, the Fund was required to recognise an impairment loss on financial instruments held at amortised cost when objective evidence of impairment existed. Upon adoption of IFRS 9, impairment is assessed either on a forthcoming 12-month or lifetime basis and recognised initially and at subsequent reporting dates at the full amount of the ECL within that period. The Fund holds only receivables and contract assets at amortised cost with no significant financing component and therefore has chosen to apply the simplified approach to assessment of ECL, making a lifetime assessment of credit loss based on relevant, supportable information about the future.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has brought no material impact on the financial statements through the recognition, timing or measurement of impairment loss.

IFRS 15, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and Clarifications to IFRS 15 ("Clarifications")

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 'Construction Contracts', IAS 18 'Revenue' and related interpretations. The core principle of the new standard is for entities to recognise revenue depicting the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Fund is entitled. This is applied using a five-step model.

Guidance on the recognition and presentation of interest and dividend income now falls within the scope of IFRS 9. A consequential amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' has clarified that only interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost can be presented within the revenue line item of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Fund's interest income from financial assets held at FVPL continues to be separately identified from revenue as 'interest income'.

There has been no material impact following the adoption of IFRS 15 in either revenue recognised by the Fund nor in the timing or pattern of revenue recognition within portfolio companies held as financial assets at FVPL.

2.3 New accounting standards / amendments not yet effective

Standards amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Fund are listed below

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 New accounting standards / amendments not yet effective (continued) Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The IASB issued a narrow scope amendment to IFRS 9 in October 2017 which updates the solely payments of principal and interest test: borrowings that include a contractual term under which an early repayment results in a settlement discount will now be deemed to have cashflows of solely principal and interest and are consequently measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI rather than FVPL. This has been termed 'negative compensation' as in effect the lender is paying the borrower compensation for early settlement.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This has been endorsed by the EU. The Fund will adopt the amendment when it becomes effective.

2.4 Going concern

The General Partner has made an assessment of the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Fund has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the General Partner is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.5 Financial period

The financial statements are prepared from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The comparatives are presented from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

2.6 Functional currency

The General Partner considers the Euro ("€") as the Fund's functional and presentational currency as it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

Unrealised foreign currency exchange gains and losses on non-Euro denominated investments arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and realised foreign exchange gains and losses on income and expenses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Non-Euro denominated assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate at the Statement of Financial Position date. Non-Euro income and expense translations are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Exchange rates at 31 December 2018:

Exchange rates at 31 December 2017:

€1=		€1=		
Sterling	£0.8976	Sterling	£0.8877	
U.S. Dollar	\$1.1432	U.S. Dollar	\$1.2008	
Danish Kroner	DKK7.4624	Danish Kroner	DKK7.4454	

2.7 Income, expenses, gains and losses

All income and expenses, inclusive of realised gains and losses, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Net income, gains and losses of the Fund are allocated under the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement. Details are set out in note 2.16.

2.8 Investment entity

The General Partner has determined that the Fund is an investment entity as per IFRS 10, 'Consolidated Financial Statements'. Details are set out in note 3.2.

2.9 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Initial recognition

Financial assets have been designated upon initial recognition at FVPL. On the date of making a legal commitment to invest in an entity, such commitment is recorded and disclosed. When funds are drawn in respect of such commitment, the resulting investment is recognised in the financial statements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Measurement

Financial assets at FVPL are initially recognised at fair value as detailed in note 3.1. Transaction costs are expensed and included within gains and losses on investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from underlying instruments have expired or the entity has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of ownership.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there were no cash equivalents.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less the appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

2.12 Trade and other payables

Payables and accrued expenses are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.13 Bank overdraft

The bank overdraft is initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. The facility arrangement fee is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when incurred due to its immaterial nature.

The bank overdraft is shown as a current (iability as the Fund has no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

2.14 Taxation

No provision has been made in the financial statements for taxation of the General Partner and the Limited Partners. All Partners are individually responsible for reporting their share of the Fund's income, gains and losses for taxation purposes.

2.15 Net assets attributable to Partners

The Fund's contributed capital consists of capital and loan contributions. Net assets attributable to Partners is classified as a financial liability, due to the Fund's finite life and contractual payment provisions to each of the Partners.

2.16 Distribution of Income proceeds and capital proceeds between Partners

The Fund's net income, gains and losses are allocated in accordance with the distribution provisions of the Limited Partnership Agreement.

Distributions are allocated pro rata in accordance with each Limited Partner's commitments until the Limited Partners have received distributions equalling the sum of:

- (a) Repayment of investors' outstanding loans pro rata to their respective commitments; and
- (b) Preferred Return (as defined in the Limited Partnership Agreement) of 8% per annum, compounded annually on 31 December.

In general, subsequent distributions will be allocated to the Founder Partner until the Founder Partner has received aggregate distributions equalling 10% of cumulative net profits ("the catch up").

All remaining distributions in excess of the catch up amount, described above, will be allocated:

- (a) 10% to the Founder Partner; and
- (b) 90% to all Limited Partners in proportion to their commitments.

At 31 December 2018, no carried interest allocation had been made to the Founder Partner (2017: €Nil).

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

There are key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Fund based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Fund. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3.1 Fair value of investments not quoted in an active market

The Investments of the Fund are valued by the General Partner with reference to the 'International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines' ("the Guidelines").

The General Partner reviews the valuations prepared by the managers of Co-investments and determines whether it is appropriate to apply such valuations to the Fund's Co-investments.

The General Partner may rely upon any valuations provided to it by the managers of the Co-investments and apply such valuations to the investments of the Fund, but shall not be bound by these. The managers' valuations are typically in line with the Guidelines. Where the General Partner does not consider it appropriate to adopt a manager's valuation, it will make its own estimate of fair value in line with the Guidelines. The unrealised and realised gains and losses on Investments are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Notwithstanding this basis of valuation, the eventual realisation proceeds will inevitably differ from the valuation and those differences could be significant.

3.2 Investment entity status

The Fund was set up with an intention to have multiple investors and indirectly hold multiple investments. Ownership interests in the Fund are in the form of the Partner's share of capital in the Fund and are exposed to variable returns from changes in the fair value of the Fund's net assets. The Fund has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity per IFRS 10, 'Consolidated Financial Statements' as the following conditions exist:

- (i) The Fund has obtained funds for the purpose of providing investors with investment management services;
- (ii) The Fund's business purpose, which was communicated directly to investors via the Limited Partnership Agreement, is providing investors with an overall rate of return from investments by means of both income and capital growth; and
- (iii) The performance of investments made is measured and evaluated on a fair value basis.

4. Administration and other expenses

	Year ended	Year ended
	31 December 2018	31 December 2017
	€	€
Administration fees	41,831	40,072
Legal and professional fees	20,703	19,324
Audit fees	6,375	6,306
Bank and custody fees	1,190	1,307
Other expenses	<u> </u>	669
	70,099	67,678

5. Trade and other receivables

	At	At
	31 December 2018	31 December 2017
	€	€
Due from General Partner	9,272	3,174
Due from Limited Partners	-	672,608
Due from Parallel Funds	<u> </u>	1,370
	9,272	677,152

6. Trade and other payables

At	At
31 December 2018	31 December 2017
€	€
19,694	217
6,304	6,219
3,455	3,383
780	669
362	320,619
•	363,529
-	520
<u> </u>	513
30,595	695,669
	31 December 2018 € 19,694 6,304 3,455 780 362

7. Bank overdraft

The Fund obtained an uncommitted, short term bank overdraft facility of €2 million from Societe Generale in July 2017. The bank overdraft facility can be drawn at any time and can be terminated by the Fund or the bank at any time by a written notice. Interest is paid monthly in arrears at a rate equal to the three month Euro interbank offered rate plus an applicable margin of up to 1.35% per annum, calculated on the daily overdrawn balance. Such amount is shown as "Interest expenses" in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. An arrangement fee is paid at a rate of 0.15% of the overdraft facility limit and such amount is shown as "Arrangement fee" in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

At 31 December 2018, €Nil has been drawn from the bank overdraft facility and therefore the undrawn bank overdraft facility available for future operating activities and to settle capital commitments was €2 million. There are no restrictions on the use of this facility.

There have been no defaults or breaches related to the facility during the year ended 31 December 2018.

8. Management profit share

The Fund allocates management profit share to the General Partner in respect of each Accounting Period, calculated at 0.25% per quarter of the net asset value at each quarter end. Further detail on the calculation is available in clause 12 of the Limited Partnership Agreement.

The management profit share in any Accounting Period shall be reduced by the whole of any Transaction Fees, Investment Related Fees, Abort Fees and Other Fees that have been earned and retained by the General Partner, the Manager or any Associate of either of them during the previous Accounting Period pursuant to clause 8.3 of the Limited Partnership Agreement, up to a maximum amount that shall be no greater than the gross amount of the management profit share for the current period. Where the management profit share is reduced to zero in any Accounting Period any Transaction Fees, Investment Related Fees, Abort Fees and Other Fees not applied in reduction of the management profit share in such Accounting Period shall be carried forward and shall reduce the management profit share in the next Accounting Period.

8. Management profit share (continued)

The management profit share ranks as the first charge on net income and realised gains in any Accounting Period and is paid in full by the Fund whether or not there are sufficient net income and realised gains to cover the amount. Such sums are not recoverable, except against future net income and realised gains of the Fund.

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the total amount of management profit share since inception exceeded the total amount of net income and net realised gains on Investments since inception and therefore €163,883 and €103,794 respectively were paid in advance.

9. Related party disclosure

The Limited Partnership Agreement provides that SL Capital ECF GP LP shall act as General Partner and is entitled to a management profit share as described in note 8. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the General Partner was allocated management profit share of €163,883 (2017: €103,794). The General Partner of SL Capital ECF GP LP is SLCP (General Partner EC) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of SLCP (Holdings) Limited, which is a subsidiary of the ultimate parent, Standard Life Aberdeen plc. The registered address of SLCP (Holdings) Limited and Standard Life Aberdeen plc is 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2LL, United Kingdom.

The Manager of the Fund receives a management fee, equal to the management profit share allocated to the General Partner, in relation to its activity as Manager of the Fund.

Standard Life Wealth International Limited and SLC EC I Executive Co Investment Limited Partnership, related entities sharing the same ultimate parent with the General Partner, have committed €2,000,000 and €1,702,500 respectively to the Partnership as Limited Partners. During the year, contributions of €722,314 and €615,040 (2017: €812,843 and €19,036) were made by Standard Life Wealth International Limited and SLC EC I Executive Co Investment Limited Partnership during the year.

Certain members and employees of the Manager also invest in SLC EC I Executive Co Investment Limited Partnership, and are entitled to participate in the profits as disclosed in note 2.16.

At 31 December 2018, €336 (2017: €100) was due from the General Partner in relation to its capital contribution following the final close.

At 31 December 2018, €8,936 (2017: €3,174) was due from the General Partner for expenses paid on its behalf.

At 31 December 2018, €19,694 (2017: €217) was due to the General Partner for management profit share.

At 31 December 2018, €Nil (2017: €1,370) was due from SL Capital European Co-investment B LP for expenses paid on its behalf. This is an entity which shares the common General Partner with the Fund.

At 31 December 2018, €Nil (2017: €351,991) and €Nil (2017: €11,538) was due to SL Capital European Co-investment B LP due to the final close and expenses paid on behalf of the Fund, respectively.

At 31 December 2018, €Nil (2017: €520) was due to SL Capital Partners LLP in respect of expenses paid on behalf of the Fund.

10. Financial risk management

The overall strategy for the management of investment risk is driven by the investment policy as set out in the Limited Partnership Agreement. This is reviewed periodically by the Manager and Advisory Committee. Investments are selected by the Manager to achieve the investment objective of generating attractive returns, subject to prudent diversification. As a matter of policy there are no pre-set sector allocations, however, risk is spread by investing across a range of countries and industrial sectors. The Fund's financial assets are predominantly unsecured investments in unquoted companies, in which the maximum risk is considered to be the amount committed.

The Fund's activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of financial risks to which the Fund is exposed are market risk (including price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The risk management policies employed by the Fund are detailed below:

10. Financial risk management (continued)

10.1 Market risk

a) Price risk

The Fund is at risk of the economic cycle impacting the quoted markets and hence potentially the pricing of investment deals, the valuation of underlying investments and the price and timing of exits.

The valuation methodology employed by the managers of co-investments may include the application of ratios derived from listed companies with similar characteristics. If any investments become quoted, they will be valued at the appropriate listed price, subject to any discount for marketability restrictions. Therefore, the value of the Fund's portfolio may be indirectly affected by price movements on listed exchanges.

Price risk is minimised by the Manager constructing a diversified portfolio of Co-investments. At 31 December 2018, there were 14 Co-investments. More detail on the sector and geographic analysis is provided in the Manager's Report, which is issued separately.

A 10% increase in the 31 December 2018 valuation of the Fund's Investments would have increased net assets attributable to Partners by €2,715,680 (2017: €1,272,764); a 10% change in the opposite direction would have decreased net assets attributable to Partners by an equivalent amount.

b) Currency risk

The Fund makes Co-investments in currencies other than Euro and accordingly a proportion of its net assets are in currencies other than Euro. As a result, the Fund's Statement of Financial Position is sensitive to movements in foreign exchange rates. The Fund has not hedged its foreign currency exposure, however, any cash received in a currency other than Euro is converted into Euro to minimise the exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates.

The tables below set out the Fund's exposure to foreign currency at the reporting date:

	31 December 2018		31 December 2017
Local	Euro	Local	Euro
Currency	Equivalent	Currency	Equivalent
14,249,954	14,249,954	6,350,651	6,350,651
4,468,401	4,978,315	2,873,498	3,237,109
9,269,677	8,108,889	3,843,465	3,200,754
-	•	(4,981)	(669)
<u>-</u>	27,337,158	_	12,787,845
	_		
	31 December 2018		31 December 2017
Local	Euro	Local	Euro
Currency	Equivalent	Currency	Equivalent
1,890,373	1,890,373	-	•
54,807	61,059	45,174	50,890
427,872	374,276		-
<u>-</u>	2,325,708	_	50,890
	Currency 14,249,954 4,468,401 9,269,677	Local Euro Currency Equivalent 14,249,954 14,249,954 4,468,401 4,978,315 9,269,677 8,108,889	Local Currency Euro Equivalent Local Currency 14,249,954 14,249,954 6,350,651 4,468,401 4,978,315 2,873,498 9,269,677 8,108,889 3,843,465 - - (4,981) 27,337,158 - Local Currency Euro Currency Equivalent Equivalent Currency 1,890,373 1,890,373 - 54,807 61,059 45,174 427,872 374,276 -

If the value of the Euro strengthened by 10% in relation to all currencies, net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased by €1,189,746 at 31 December 2018 (2017: €585,199); a 10% change in the opposite direction would have resulted in an increase of €1,454,134 (2017: €715,244). These calculations are based on the net assets at the respective Statement of Financial Position dates and are not necessarily representative of the period as a whole.

The Fund has no significant exposure to currency risk on monetary items.

c) Interest rate risk

The Fund's main interest rate risk arises from short-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk.

10. Financial risk management (continued)

10.1 Market risk (continued)

c) Interest rate risk (continued)

The Fund manages its cash flow interest rate risk by actively monitoring the interest expenses from the bank overdraft. The Fund has no set interest rate level at which to cancel the overdraft, however the interest rate is actively monitored and any overdraft balance can be repaid if it is deemed appropriate to do so.

The General Partner does not believe that the impact of interest rate risk to be significant to the Fund.

10.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the exposure to loss arising from the failure of a counterparty to deliver securities or cash for acquisitions or disposals of investments or to repay deposits.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, in the event that counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the year end (in relation to each class of recognised financial assets), is the carrying amount of those assets in the Statement of Financial Position. At the reporting date, the Fund's financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to the following:

	At 31 December 2018	At 31 December 2017	
	€	€	
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	27,156,802	12,727,644	
Trade and other receivables	9,272	677,152	
Cash and cash equivalents	201,679	78,718	
	27,367,753	13,483,514	

The Fund places cash with authorised deposit takers and, therefore, is potentially at risk from the failure of any such institution. At 31 December 2018, all of the Fund's cash was held by Societe Generale which was rated "A" by Standard & Poor's at the date of the Report of the General Partner.

At 31 December 2018, the assets held by the Fund are not past due or impaired (2017: €Nil).

10.3 Liquidity risk

The Fund's Investments are in unquoted companies which are not traded in a regulated public market and are generally illiquid. As a result, the Fund may not be able to quickly liquidate these portfolio investments at an amount equal to their fair value, in order to meet its liquidity requirements. The Manager mitigates this risk by regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure sufficient cash is held to meet liabilities as they fall due.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Fund generated an operating profit after finance costs of €3,804,950 (2017: €1,094,353) and cash resources at the end of the year amounted to €201,679 (2017: €78,718). The liabilities of the Fund (excluding net assets attributable to Partners) are due on demand. In addition, the Fund had available to it undrawn commitments of €7,359,491 (2017: €18,267,501) from its Limited Partners, which are also due on demand.

The tables below analyse the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

10. Financial risk management (continued)

10.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018					
		Less than	Between	More than	
	On demand	1 year	1 and 3 years	3 years	Total
	€	€	€	€	€
Liabilities					
Trade and other payables	-	30,595	-	-	30,595
Net assets					
attributable to Partners	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	27,337,158	27,337,158
Total liabilities		30,595	_	27,337,158	27,367,753
Total unfunded commitments					
to Investments	2,325,708	<u> </u>		_	2,325,708
At 31 December 2017					
		Less than	Between	More than	
	On demand	1 year	1 and 3 years	3 years	Total
	€	€	€	€	€
Liabilities					
Trade and other payables	-	695,669	-	-	695,669
Net assets					
attributable to Partners	-	-	-	12,787,846	12,787,846
Total liabilities	-	695,669		12,787,846	13,483,515
Total unfunded commitments					
to Investments	50,890		<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	50,890

10.4 Capital risk management

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to Partners. The Fund's objective when managing the capital is to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for Partners and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner may call unfunded commitments from the Limited Partners or distribute funds to the Limited Partners.

The General Partner monitors capital on the basis of the value of the net assets attributable to Partners.

11. Fair value measurement

IFRS 7 requires a three-level hierarchy disclosure for categorising financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy classifies financial assets and liabilities according to the source of inputs ranked according to availability of observable market prices used in measuring fair value as follows:

- Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
- Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

11. Fair value measurement (continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety should be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The categorisation of a Co-investment within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of that Investment. All of the Fund's Investments have been classified within Level 3 as they have unobservable inputs and trade infrequently or not at all.

The determination of what constitutes "observable" requires significant judgement by the General Partner. The General Partner considers observable data to be market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by multiple, independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Fund's Investments measured at fair value:

At 31 December 2018

Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
€	€	€	€
-	-	27,156,802	27,156,802
Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
€	€	€	€
-	-	12,727,644	12,727,644
	€ - Level 1 €	€ € Level 1 Level 2 € €	€ € € - 27,156,802 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 € € €

There were no transfers between levels during the current and comparative year.

Determining the fair value of the Fund's Investments requires judgement and considers factors specific to the Investments. The valuation policies applied by the General Partner are detailed in note 3.1.

The changes in Investments measured at fair value for which the Fund has used Level 3 inputs to determine fair value are as follows:

	31 December 2018	31 December 2017
	€	€
Balance at the start of the year	12,7 2 7, 644	4,865,153
Purchases	10,560,311	6,635,148
Sales	(10,719)	-
Realised and unrealised gains	3,879,566	1,227,343
Balance at the end of the year	27,156,802	12,727,644
Unrealised movement included in profit or loss related to Investments still held at the reporting date:		
 Net unrealised movement on Investments (excluding transaction costs) 	3,706,104	1,669,675
- Net unrealised foreign exchange movement on Investments	218,956	(424,043)
	3,925,060	1,245,632

12. Events after the reporting date

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to 9 May 2019. There are no significant events identified after the reporting date.

Appendix I

Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD) Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure AIF Annual Report and Accounts SL Capital European Co-investment LP

Remuneration Policy

The Standard Life Aberdeen plc Remuneration Policy applies with effect from 1 January 2018. The purpose of the Standard Life Aberdeen plc Remuneration Policy (the "Policy") is to document clearly the remuneration policies, practices and procedures of Standard Life Aberdeen. It has been approved by the Standard Life Aberdeen plc Remuneration Committee and is subject to the Remuneration Committee's annual review. The Policy applies to employees of the Standard Life Aberdeen group of companies ("SLA").

The AIFM, Standard Life Capital Partners LLP is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Standard Life Aberdeen plc.

The Remuneration Committee of Standard Life Aberdeen plc adopted an AIFM Remuneration Policy to ensure that the requirements of the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD) are fully adhered to by the group. This policy applies to SL Capital Partners LLP and the Alternative Investment Funds (AIFs) it manages (SL Capital European Co-investment LP). This policy is available on request.

Remuneration Principles

SLA applies Group wide principles for remuneration policies, procedures and practices ensuring that remuneration design and the basis for awards will be clear, transparent and fair, in line with business strategy, objectives, culture, values and long term interests of SLA. Remuneration policies, procedures and practices should be consistent with and promote good conduct which includes sound and effective risk management and not encourage risk taking that exceeds the level of tolerated risk of SLA. Total variable remuneration will be funded through pre-agreed distribution metrics. Where SLA's financial performance is subdued or negative, total variable remuneration should generally be contracted, taking into account both current remuneration and reductions in pay-outs of amounts previously granted and having regard for SLA's long term economic viability.

In addition to applying the SLA wide principles above, Aberdeen Standard Investments ("ASI") applies a number of additional principles including the following, when determining remuneration for employees:

- a) Remuneration should be competitive and reflect both financial, non-financial and personal performance;
- b) Our remuneration design will align the interests of employees, shareholders and importantly our clients/customers;
- c) Our remuneration structure will reward delivery of results over appropriate time horizons and will include deferred variable compensation at an appropriate level for the employee's role;
- d) We will provide an appropriate level of fixed remuneration to balance risk and reward.

Governance and Regulatory Compliance

The Remuneration Committee is made up of independent non-executive directors and makes recommendations to the Board of Standard Life Aberdeen plc (the "Board") to assist it with its remuneration related duties. The Chief People Officer of Standard Life Aberdeen is responsible for ensuring the implementation of the Policy in consultation with the Remuneration Committee as well as other members of the Executive Committee ("Executive Body") (as defined by the Board), if appropriate.

Financial and non-financial criteria

Variable remuneration is based on a rounded assessment of Group, Divisional and individual performance. When assessing individual performance, financial as well as non-financial criteria are taken into account. Individual performance is based on the individual's appraisal, which includes an employee's compliance with controls and applicable company standards including the Group's Code of Ethics, including Treating Customers Fairly and Conduct Risk.

Conflicts of interest

The Conflicts of Interest Policy is designed to avoid conflicts of interest between SLA and its clients. This Policy prohibits any employee from being involved in decisions on their own remuneration. Furthermore, all employees are required to adhere to SLA's Global Code of Conduct, which encompasses conflicts of interest.

The Policy should, at all times, adhere to local legislation, regulations or other provisions. In circumstances or in jurisdictions where there is any conflict between the Policy and local legislation, regulations or other provisions, then the latter will prevail.

Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure AIF Annual Report and Accounts (continued)

Remuneration Framework

Employee remuneration is composed principally of fixed and variable elements of reward as follows:

- a) Fixed reward (fixed remuneration: salary (and cash allowances, if appropriate); and Benefits (including pension).
- b) Variable reward (bonus, a proportion of which may be subject to retention or deferral depending on role and regulatory requirements) and senior employees may also be awarded a long-term incentive award).

Appropriate ratios of fixed: variable remuneration will be set to as to ensure that:

- a) Fixed and variable components of total remuneration are appropriately balanced and
- b) The fixed component is a sufficiently high proportion of total remuneration to allow Standard Life Aberdeen to operate a fully flexible policy on variable remuneration components, including paying no variable remuneration component.

Fixed Remuneration

Base salary provides a core reward for undertaking the role, where appropriate, and depending on the role, geographical or business market variances or other indicators, additional fixed cash allowances may make up a portion of fixed remuneration.

Benefits

Benefits are made up of: core benefits, which are provided to all employees; and extra voluntary benefits that may be chosen by certain employees and which may require contribution through salary sacrifice or other arrangements. Extra voluntary benefits are designed to support the health and wellbeing of employees through enabling individual selection based on lifestyle choices. Standard Life Aberdeen will ensure that the core and voluntary employee benefits policies are in line with relevant market practice, its views on managing its business risk objectives, culture and values and long-term interests and local requirements.

Pension

Standard Life Aberdeen's pension policies (which consist of defined contribution plans and legacy defined benefit plans) are in line with legislative requirements, governance structures and market practice, and reflect Standard Life Aberdeen's long-term views on risk and financial volatility, its business objectives, culture and values and long-term interests and local requirements. In certain circumstances, SLA may offer a cash allowance in lieu of any pension arrangement.

Annual Performance Bonus Awards

Employees who have been employed during a performance year (1 January to 31 December) may be eligible to be considered for an annual bonus in respect of that year. Eligibility criteria for an annual bonus are set out in the rules of the relevant bonus plan and/or contract of employment, as appropriate. The bonus plan in place is designed to reward performance in line with the business strategy, objectives, culture and values, long term interests and risk appetite of SLA. All Executive Directors are awarded bonuses under a SLA bonus plan as detailed in the Directors' Remuneration Report.

Other variable Pay Plans

Selected employees may participate in other variable pay plans, for example, performance fee share arrangements, where it is appropriate for their role or business unit. These plans operate under the overarching remuneration principles that apply across the group and, where appropriate, are also subject to specific principles governing incentives and are compliant with the requirements of any applicable regulatory standards.

Clawback/Malus

A clawback/malus principle applies to the variable pay plan. This enables the Remuneration Committee to seek to recoup the deferred amount of any unvested variable pay, in the exceptional event of misstatement or misleading representation of performance; a significant failure of risk management and control; or serious misconduct by an individual.

Guaranteed Variable Remuneration

Guaranteed variable remuneration is exceptional, occurs only in the context of hiring new staff and is limited to the first year of service.

Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure AIF Annual Report and Accounts (continued)

AIFMD Identified Staff

Staff considered AIFMD Identified Staff are those categories of staff whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profiles of the AIFM or the AIFS that the AIFM manages.

AIFMD identified staff will include; Senior Management; Risk takers, Staff engaged in control functions; and any employees receiving total remuneration that takes them into the same remuneration bracket as senior management and risk takers, and whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profiles of the Company or the Funds that the Company manages.

Control Functions

SLA adheres to the principles and guidelines of regulations that apply to SLA in defining control functions. Control functions include, but are not necessarily limited to, Risk, Compliance, Internal Audit and Actuarial functions or roles.

SLA will ensure that, as appropriate, senior employees engaged in a control function:

- a) Are independent from the Business Units they oversee;
- b) Have appropriate authority, and
- c) Their remuneration is directly overseen by the Remuneration Committee.

This is achieved by the main control functions being outside the business, and a material proportion of their annual incentives being subject to a scorecard based on the performance of the control function. Performance against the scorecard is reviewed by the relevant independent governing committee (either Risk & Capital Committee, or Audit Committee). SLA's People Function reviews the remuneration of employees in control functions and benchmarks with the external market to ensure that it is market competitive and adequately reflects employees' skills and experience.

Personal Hedging

AIFMD Identified Staff are not permitted to undermine the risk alignment effects of the AIFMD Remuneration Code. Personal hedging strategies; or remuneration-related insurance; or liability-related insurance is not permissible on remuneration.

Employee Remuneration Disclosure

The table below provides an overview of the following:

- Count of 'Identified Staff' assigned to SL Capital Partners LLP and to SL Capital European Co-investment LP. SL Capital Partners LLP
 numbers represent the actual count of 'Identified Staff' against this AIFM while AIF level numbers are calculated based on the AIFs
 AUM proportion of SL Capital Partners LLP AUM.
- Aggregate total remuneration paid by SL Capital Partners LLP to its 'Identified Staff'. This is split by Fixed and Variable Remuneration and also by Total Remuneration of Senior Management and Total Remuneration of Other 'Identified Staff'.
- Aggregate total remuneration paid by the fund (SL Capital European Co-investment LP) to its 'Identified Staff'. These AIF level
 numbers are calculated as AIF's AUM proportion of SL Capital Partners LLP AUM.

The 'Identified Staff of SL Capital Partners LLP are those employees who could have a material impact on the risk profile of SL Capital Partners LLP or the AIF's it manages (including SL Capital European Co-investment LP). This broadly includes senior management, risk takers and control functions. For the purposes of this disclosure, 'Identified Staff' includes employees of entities to which activities have been delegated.

Amounts shown reflect payments made during the financial reporting period in question. The reporting period runs from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 inclusive.

Unaudited Remuneration Disclosure AIF Annual Report and Accounts (continued)

Employee Remuneration Disclosure (continued)

	Headcount	SL Capital Partners LLP AIFM Total Remuneration	SL Capital European Co- investment LP AIF Total Remuneration
		€.000	€'000
Senior Management	16	151	3
Other 'Identified Staff'	67	684	15
Total Fixed remuneration		342	7
Variable remuneration		493	11
Carried Interest		NIL	NIL